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AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Monday, November 27, 2023, 6:30 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.

Johnstown Ontario

Call to Order

Approval of Agenda

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest & the General Nature Thereof

Delegations & Presentations

Consent Agenda

Items listed under Consent Agenda are considered routine or no longer require a further
discussion and are enacted in one motion. The exception to this rule is that a Member may
request that one or more items be pulled for discussion and voted on separately.

Recommendation: THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the following consent
agenda items as presented:

a.

g.
h.

Regular Council - October 30, 2023 [See item 6.a.]

Public Meeting - Zoning Bylaw Amendment - 2073 & 2084 Dundas St - October 23,
2023 [See item 8.a]

Port Management Committee - October 23, 2023 [See item 8.b]

Committee of the Whole - Community Development - November 6, 2023 [See item
8.c]

Committee of the Whole - Administration & Operations - November 13, 2023 [See
item 8.d]

Public Meeting - Township Official Plan and Zoning Bylaw Amendment - November
20, 2023 [See item 8.€]

Surplus Fire Department Tanker Auction Results [See item 9.c]

Naming of Lockmaster's Meadow Subdivision Streets [See item 9.d]

Minutes of the Previous Council Meetings

a.

Regular Council - October 30, 2023 - CONSENT

Business Arising from the Previous Council Meeting (if any)

Committee Minutes

a.

Public Meeting - Zoning Bylaw Amendment - 2073 & 2084 Dundas St - October 23,
2023 - CONSENT

Port Management Committee - October 23, 2023 - CONSENT
Committee of the Whole - Community Development - November 6, 2023 - CONSENT

Committee of the Whole - Administration & Operations - November 13, 2023 -
CONSENT

Public Meeting - Township Official Plan and Zoning Bylaw Amendment - November
20, 2023 - CONSENT

Action and Information Iltems from Committees

a.

Resolution of Support - Baseload Power - Battery Energy Storage Project



Resolution of Support - Potentia Renewables Inc. - Battery Energy Storage Project
Surplus Fire Department Tanker Auction Results - CONSENT

Naming of Lockmaster's Meadow Subdivision Streets - CONSENT

Group Benefits RFQ Award

2023 Township Financial Audit Plan

g. 2023 Port Financial Audit Plan

-~ ® o o T

10.  Correspondence
11.  Municipal Disbursements
12. By-laws
Repeal Bylaw 2021-06 Service Agreement with Eastern Ontario Boneyard

Infrastructure Ontario Borrowing Bylaw - County Rd 2 Wastewater Rehabilitation

c. Amend Zoning Bylaw 2022-37 - 2073 Dundas St (Zanderplan o/b 2733521 Ontario
Inc.)

d. Amend Zoning Bylaw 2022-37 - 2084 Dundas St (Zanderplan o/b 2733521 Ontario
Inc.)

e.  Scott Road Transfer Station Waste Management Bylaw

f. Emergency Management Program Bylaw Update
g. Amend Official Plan Bylaw 2019-81 - Amendment No. 2
h.  Amend Zoning Bylaw 2022-37 - Lot Size and Frontage

13. CAO’s Administrative Update

14.  Councillor Inquiries or Notices of Motion
15. Mayor’s Report

16.  Question Period

17.  Closed Session

a.  Section 239(2)(c) Proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the
municipality or local board; Specifically: Industrial Land

b.  Section 239(2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees; Specifically: Youth/Citizen of the Year

c. Section 239 (2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees; Specifically: Operational Sustainability and
Minutes of Closed Session dated October 30, 2023

18. Report Out of Closed Session
19.  Confirmation By-law

20. Adjournment
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MINUTES
MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Monday, October 30, 2023
6:30 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.
Johnstown Ontario

PRESENT: Mayor Tory Deschamps
Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough
Councillor Joe Martelle
Councillor Waddy Smail
Councillor Chris Ward

STAFF: Dave Grant, CAO
Rebecca Crich, Clerk
Sean Nicholson, Treasurer
Gord Shaw, Director of Operations
Mike Spencer, Manager of Parks, Recreation & Facilities
Candise Newcombe, Deputy Clerk

1. Call to Order

Mayor Deschamps called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.
2. Approval of Agenda

Decision: 2023-269

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Municipal Council approves the agenda as presented.

Carried
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest & the General Nature
Thereof
None.
4. Delegations & Presentations

a. Clare Kinlin - Byers Rd

Mr. Kinlin provided a history of events regarding the Byers Road property
and highlighted his goals of holding Council accountable for maintaining
transparency with the public.

There was discussion regarding past issues with the industrial waste
disposal zoning designation of the Byers Road property, closed session
meeting procedures, accountability of the United Counties of Leeds and
Grenville (UCLG), and the responsibilities of Township Council to its
residents.

Council reviewed the closed session meeting investigator process with the
Township's Integrity Commissioner, identified as Mr. Tony Fleming, of
Cunningham, Swan Law Firm. Members provided a high level overview of
the subject of the closed session meeting held at the September 11
Committee of the Whole - Administration and Operations meeting.

Mr. Kinlin inquired about the process for changing the current zoning of
the Byers Road property. It was noted that the Byers Road property was
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owned by UCLG, therefore the UCLG would be the deciding body on
zoning designation. Members reviewed the process for applying to be a
delegation at the UCLG County Council meeting.

5. Consent Agenda
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the following consent agenda
items as presented:

o

a. Regular Council - September 25, 2023 [See item 63a]
b.

Special Council - October 10, 2023 [See item 6b]
Special Council - October 16, 2023 [See item 6¢]

Committee of the Whole - Administration and Operations - September 11,
2023 [See item 8a]

Port Management Committee - September 18, 2023 [See item 8b]
Public Library - September 26, 2023 [See item 8¢]

. Committee of the Whole - Community Development - October 2, 2023

[See item 8d]

. Committee of the Whole - Administration and Operations - October 10,

2023 [See item 8e]
Application for Severance 2460 Rooney Rd (Smith) [See item 9a]
Request for Easement - 2099 Dundas (Speska Holding Inc) [See item 9b]

Carried

6. Minutes of the Previous Council Meetings

a.

Regular Council - September 25, 2023 - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the Regular
Council meeting dated September 25, 2023.

Carried

Special Council - October 10, 2023 - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the Special
Council meeting dated October 10, 2023.

Carried

Special Council - October 16, 2023 - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270
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Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the Special
Council meeting dated October 16, 2023.

Carried

Business Arising from the Previous Council Meeting (if any)

None.

Committee Minutes

a.

Committee of the Whole - Administration & Operations - September 11,
2023 - CONSENT

Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the
Committee of the Whole - Administration and Operations meeting dated
September 11, 2023.

Carried

Port Management Committee - September 18, 2023 - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives the minutes of the Port Management
Committee meeting dated September 18, 2023.

Carried

Public Library - September 26, 2023 - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives the minutes of the Public Library
meeting dated September 26, 2023.

Carried

Committee of the Whole - Community Development - October 2, 2023 -
CONSENT

Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the
Committee of the Whole - Community Development dated October 2,
2023.

Carried

Committee of the Whole - Administration & Operations - October 10, 2023
- CONSENT
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Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of the
Committee of the Whole - Administration and Operations meeting dated
October 10, 2023.

Carried

9. Action and Information Items from Committees

a.

Application for Severance - 2460 Rooney Rd (Smith) - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council recommend in favour of severance B-111-23
(2460 Rooney Rd - Smith) with the following conditions:

1. That the owner obtain relief from the Zoning Bylaw, to the
satisfaction of the Township, that permits the accessory structure
on the severed lands, with all levels of appeal exhausted; and

2. That the owner provide evidence, to the satisfaction of the
Township, that the existing shared well is disconnected from the
accessory building on the severed lot. Each shall be serviced by
individual water supply and sewage disposal systems.

As recommended by the Committee of the Whole - Community
Development.

Carried

Request for Easement - 2099 Dundas (Speska Holdings Inc.) - CONSENT
Decision: 2023-270

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council:

1. Proceed with the request for an easement over 2093-2095 Dundas
St. in favour of 2099 Dundas St.; and

2. Authorize staff to obtain legal support in drafting an easement
agreement for Council's consideration that deals with the
maintenance and use of the land as requested by the Owner of
2099 Dundas St.

As recommended by the Committee of the Whole - Community
Development.

Carried

Navigi and Systems Mapping Proposal
Decision: 2023-271

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council direct staff to work with HelpSeeker Technologies
to implement the proposed Navigi supply mapping project, as
recommended by the Committee of the Whole - Community Development.
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10.

Carried

d. County Rd 2 - Debenture Report

Council discussed debenture options, payback structure options and

reviewed the benefits of the longer debenture period based on the

estimated lifecycle of the asset. Council confirmed that the debentured

amount will be borne by benefiting users of the Cardinal water/sewer

system.

Decision: 2023-272

Moved by: S. Dillabough

Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council direct the Treasurer to engage Infrastructure

Ontario to secure a 20-year debenture, payable semi-annually in the

amount of $1,030,150.00 to complete funding for the County Road 2

project, as recommended by the Committee of the Whole - Administration

and Operations.

Carried

e. New Scott Road Transfer Site 60% Design

Council noted the attentiveness of staff in incorporating the various

modifications noted by Council into the future transfer site design.

Decision: 2023-273

Moved by: W. Smail

Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council:

1. Review the 60% design and associated estimates provided by
Jp2G; and
2. Direct staff to advise Jp2G of any changes and to proceed with the
final design.
As recommended by the Committee of the Whole - Administration and
Operations.
Carried

Correspondence

Decision: 2023-274

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council receives the correspondence listings for the following
dates as previously circulated:

September 27, 2023
October 4, 2023
October 11, 2023
October 18, 2023
October 26, 2023

Carried

Page 5 of 175



The upcoming Economic Development Summit was highlighted and members of
Council were encouraged to attend. Members that wish to attend were advised to
contact the Clerk prior to the registration deadline.

11.  Municipal Disbursements
Decision: 2023-275

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council receives the payment of municipal invoices circulated
and dated as follows:

Report dated September 29 (2023-185)  $146,954.60
Report dated September 29 (2023-186)  $2,046,109.03

e Report dated October 16 (2023-193) $197,405.09
e Report dated October 19 (2023-195) $218,566.10
e Report dated October 19 (2023-196) $93,092.00
e Report dated October 19 (2023-197) $303,096.86
Total: $3,005,223.68
Carried
12. By-laws
a. Option to Repurchase Agreement - 2506418 Ontario INC. (Purplefarm)
Council confirmed that both parties were mutually supportive of the terms
and conditions within the agreement.
Decision: 2023-276
Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail
THAT the mover be granted leave to introduce a bylaw to authorize the
Mayor and CAO to execute an option to repurchase agreement between
the Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal and 2506418
Ontario Inc., and this shall constitute first and second reading thereof.
Carried
Council commended staff on collaboration efforts and achieving an
agreement to allow additional flexibility for Purplefarm to achieve their
development goals. Members highlighted that Council made the decision
to provide additional support through the option to repurchase agreement
and encourage development opportunities within the Township.
Decision: 2023-277
Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail
THAT a bylaw to authorize the Mayor and CAO to execute an option to
repurchase agreement between the Corporation of the Township of
Edwardsburgh Cardinal and 2506418 Ontario Inc., be now read a third
and final time and finally passed, signed, sealed and numbered 2023-55.
Carried
b. Agreement of Purchase and Sale - Alantra Leasing Inc.
Decision: 2023-278
6
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13.

14.

Moved by: W. Smail
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

THAT the mover be granted leave to introduce a bylaw to authorize the
Mayor and CAO to execute an agreement of purchase and sale between
the corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal and Alantra
Leasing Inc/Location Alantra Inc., and this shall constitute first and second
reading thereof.

Carried

Members noted that items such as the negotiation of agreements of
purchase and sale, such as this one, must take place in closed session.

Decision: 2023-279

Moved by: W. Smail
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

THAT a bylaw to authorize the Mayor and CAO to execute an agreement
of sale between the corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh
Cardinal and Alantra Leasing Inc/Location Alantra Inc., be now read a third
and final time and passed, signed, sealed and numbered 2023-56.

Carried

CAOQO’s Administrative Update

Council reviewed the CAO’s administrative update and discussed the following

items:

Possible future coverage of capital costs and cost/revenue sharing
agreement between Rideau St. Lawrence and the Township for the
installation of EV Charging Stations.

Confirmed the Official Plan Amendment (OPA) public meeting advertising
and schedule for November 20, noting the open house time of 4:00 p.m.-
6:00p.m. and the public meeting to follow at 6:00 p.m.

Estimated timeframe for completion of Lockmaster's Meadow subdivision.

Estimated timeframe for completion of the Johnstown tennis court
remediation project.

Inquired about the possibility of extending the Cardinal dock season prior
to removal and requested future discussion regarding extending the
season in future years.

Supported the efforts made with the Cardinal and Johnstown Trunk or
Treat events held on October 29.

Discussed the strategic placement of the trees planted along Legion Way
and inquired about the process of future relocation of the seedlings should
the need be required.

Discussed the cancelled snow removal contract with the Township and
noted it was due to increased insurance rates.

Decision: 2023-280

Moved by: W. Smail
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

THAT Municipal Council receives the CAO’s Administrative Report as presented.

Carried

Councillor Inquiries or Notices of Motion
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15.

16.

17.

Councillor Smail noted his impending absence from November 6 — 18.

Deputy Mayor Dillabough requested a future discussion item on the parameters
of the proposed charge for the use of the Cardinal boat launch and timeline for
seasonal dock installation and removal.

Mayor’s Report
Mayor Deschamps reported on the following:

o Highlighted the installation and locations of the Township’s Remembrance
Day banners throughout the Township.

¢ Attended the Poppy Pinning Ceremony for the Cardinal and Spencerville
Legions on October 27 at the Johnstown Community Centre.

e Attended the Kings Day event at the Ingredion Centre.

¢ Noted good attendance at the Trunk or Treat events held in Cardinal and
Johnstown on October 29.

e Thanked staff for their assistance in drafting a letter to the Minister of
Transport Canada, the Honorable Pablo Rodriguez respecting the
Seaway strike.

e Wished son a Happy 11th Birthday.
Decision: 2023-281

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council approves the Mayor's report as presented.

Carried

Question Period
Questions/comments were raised with respect to the following:

e Sought confirmation on and was informed of the confidentiality of the civic
number of the Byer's Road property.

Closed Session
Decision: 2023-282

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT Municipal Council proceeds into closed session at 8:01 p.m. in order to
address a matter pertaining to:

a. Section 239(2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees: Specifically: Operational
Sustainability.

b. Section 239(2)(c) Acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or
local board; Specifically: Minutes of closed session dated August 28,
2023.

Carried

a. Section 239 (2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees: Specifically: Operational
Sustainability

b. Section 239(2)(c) Acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or
local board; Specifically: Minutes of August 28, 2023

Decision: 2023-283
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18.

19.

20.

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

THAT the closed meeting of Municipal Council does now adjourn and the
open meeting does now resume at 8:59 p.m.

Carried

Report Out of Closed Session

Council met in closed session to discuss personal matters about an identifiable
individual and requested the CAO return with additional information and reviewed
the minutes of closed session.

Decision: 2023-284

Moved by: W. Smail
Seconded by: C. Ward

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the minutes of Closed Session
dated August 28, 2023.

Carried

Confirmation By-law
Decision: 2023-285
Moved by: W. Smail

THAT a by-law to adopt, confirm and ratify matters dealt with by resolution be
now passed, signed, sealed and numbered 2023-57.

Carried

Adjournment

Decision: 2023-286

Moved by: C. Ward

That Municipal Council does now adjourn at 9:02 p.m.

Carried

Mayor Deputy Clerk
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MINUTES
PUBLIC MEETING

Monday, October 23, 2023, 6:00 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.

Johnstown Ontario

PRESENT: Mayor Tory Deschamps
Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough
Councillor Joe Martelle
Councillor Waddy Smail
Councillor Chris Ward

STAFF: Dave Grant, CAO
Rebecca Crich, Clerk
Wendy Van Keulen, Community Development Coordinator
Candise Newcombe, Deputy Clerk

PUBLIC: Tracy Zander
Victoria Freeborn
Micheline Grand Mont
Rock Mallin

1. Call Meeting to Order

Mayor Deschamps called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and reminded the
members of the public present to sign in on the sheet provided to record their
attendance as part of the public meeting minutes.

2. Welcome and Introductions

Mayor Deschamps welcomed those present and introduced the subject of the
meeting.

It was noted that Council was in attendance to hear comments on the proposed
amendments and not to make decisions on the application at this time.

The Community Development Coordinator noted that this meeting is being held
under the authority of section 34 of the Planning Act and was advertised in
accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act.

It was noted that the purpose of the meeting was to consider two applications to
amend the Township's Zoning Bylaw at:

e 2084 Dundas St.; and

Public Meeting - Proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments - 2084 Dundas St; 2073 Dundas
St - October 23, 2023 1
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e 2073 Dundas St

The Community Development Coordinator noted that anyone who wishes to
comment on the proposed amendments would be given the opportunity to do so.

It was noted that the applicant will have the opportunity to address any concerns
related to the proposed amendments after the comments are heard. Following
the meeting, staff will coordinate the preparation of a final report to the
Committee of the Whole - Community Development meeting, taking into
consideration any planning matters brought forward as formal comments at the
meeting or made in writing to Council through the Community Development
Coordinator.

It was noted that if individuals do not make an oral presentation tonight or a
written submission to the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal before the bylaw is
passed, they will not be entitled to appeal Council's decision to the Ontario Land
Tribunal or be added as a party to a hearing unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal,
there are reasonable grounds to do so.

To be notified of Council's decision, it was noted that a written request must be
made to the Community Development Coordinator (CDC). Without this written
request, an individual will not receive a notice of Council's decision.

3. 2084 Dundas Street
a. Review of Proposal

The Community Development Coordinator provided a summary of the
application to amend zoning bylaw 2022-37 for a property at 2084 Dundas
Street.

The purpose of the amendment was noted to change the zoning on the
property from Residential Second Density (R2) and Main Street
Commercial (MC) to Main Street Commercial - Special Exception (MC-X)
in order to permit residential units on the ground floor of the existing
building.

The amendment would allow for the conversion of an existing residential
unit at the rear of the building into four residential units. The building
currently has 7 dwelling units but will contain a total of 10 units following
the proposed internal conversion.

Ms. Zander spoke to the application noting its conformity to the proposed
zoning bylaw amendment and highlighted that Ms. Freeborn was in
attendance to address any questions or comments.

b. Public Comment

The Mayor offered the opportunity for public comments on the proposed
amendment.

Public Meeting - Proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments - 2084 Dundas St; 2073 Dundas
St - October 23, 2023 2
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It was noted that no members of the public who were in attendance at the
meeting made comments on the application.

4. 2073 Dundas Street
a. Review of Proposal

The Community Development Coordinator provided a summary of the
application to amend zoning bylaw 2022-37 for a property at 2073 Dundas
Street.

The purpose of the amendment was noted to change the zoning on the
property from Main Street Commercial (MC) to Main Street Commercial -
Special Exception (MC-X) in order to permit a residential use on the
ground floor of the existing mixed use commercial building.

The amendment would allow the conversion of a portion of the commercial
space on the ground floor to one residential dwelling unit within the
existing building.

Ms. Zander provided a summary of the proposal and its conformity to the
zoning bylaw amendment and highlighted Ms. Freeborn's attendance to
address any questions or comments.

b. Public Comment

The Mayor offered the opportunity for public comments on the proposed
amendment.

It was noted that no members of the public who were in attendance at the
meeting made comments on the application.

5. Next Steps

The Mayor noted that the proposed zoning amendment would be considered at
an upcoming Committee of the Whole - Community Development meeting.
Subsequently, Council will consider the Committee's recommendation and any
comments from the public before making a decision on these applications at a
future meeting of Council. It was noted that Committee and Council meetings and
agendas are posted on the Township website at www.twpec.ca for those who
wish to attend.

Once the decision is made by Council and a notice of decision is mailed, there
will be a 20-day appeal period.

As a reminder, if you wish to be notified of Council's decision, you must make a
written request to the Township through the Community Development
Coordinator.

6. Adjournment
The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:08 p.m.
Public Meeting - Proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments - 2084 Dundas St; 2073 Dundas
St - October 23, 2023 3
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Deputy Clerk

Public Meeting - Proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments - 2084 Dundas St; 2073 Dundas
St - October 23, 2023 4
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MINUTES
PORT OF JOHNSTOWN MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
SOUTH EDWARDSBURGH COMMUNITY CENTRE - JOHNSTOWN
MONDAY OCTOBER 23, 2023
6:30 PM

Present: Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough, Chair

Staff:

Tory Deschamps, Mayor

Councillor Chris Ward

Councillor Joseph Martelle

Councillor Waddy Smail

Randy Stitt, Advisory Member

Frank McAuley, Advisory Member
Clint Cameron, Advisory Member
Regina Hernandez, Advisory Member

Dave Grant, CAO

Sean Nicholson, Treasurer

Robert Dalley, General Manager
Kevin Saunders, Operations Manager
Mike Moulton, Operations Manager
Rebecca Williams, Clerk

Candise Newcombe, Deputy Clerk
Rhonda Code, Office Manager

Call to Order
Deputy Mayor Dillabough called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Approval of Agenda

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee approves the agenda as presented.
Carried

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof — None
Delegations and Presentations — None
Minutes of the Previous POJ Committee Meeting

a) Regular Meeting — September 18, 2023

Moved by: W. Smail
Seconded by: J. Martelle

Page 1 of 5
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That Port Management Committee receives and approves the minutes of the
Port Management Committee meeting dated September 18, 2023.

Carried
Business Arising from the Previous PMC Minutes (if any) — None.

Discussion ltems
a) Port Day 2024

Members noted their interest in hosting the Port Day 2024. Discussion was
held on hosting a vessel at the Port, tentative dates, and incorporating local
community groups in the organization of the event. It was noted that June 22,
2024 will be the tentative date for Port Day.

Action/Information Items
a) Grain Operations Report

Port staff provided an overview of the monthly operations report and
highlighted the following areas: overall inventory levels, monthly traffic, grain
received/shipped, identified where wheat consumption is concentrated, and
wheat capacity.

Committee discussed working additional weekend hours with Ingredion Inc..,
the increase in labour hours, quality report ratings and what impacts the
reporting, and tonnage per truck load of wheat.

b) Maintenance Report

Port staff provided an overview of the monthly report and there was a general
discussion on the following topics: weekly and monthly
maintenance/electrical work completed, the automated bin system, and the
labour and quality report.

c) Capital Projects Report

Committee was provided a summary of the report and discussed the Port
warehouse invoice amount, elastomeric coating test area on grain elevator,
the reason for increased labour hours, current labour demand at the Port,
and the strategy for obtaining additional natural gas servicing through the
Ministry.

d) Financial Report

Committee was provided with a brief overview of the monthly revenue and
expenses and year to date budget to actual numbers. Committee discussed
the following: meter reading discrepancies with the natural gas invoicing,
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average monthly costs of natural gas services, and reviewed the investment
report and the budget process.

e) Vessel Traffic Report

Committee reviewed the traffic report and discussed drafting a report on
number of ships at berth based on various products and the reduced timing
on vessel loading due to new spouts.

f) General Manager’s Report

Committee reviewed the report and discussion was held on the timeframe to
utilize the Federal funding for the grain dryer, the estimated timeline for the P
& H grain storage facility development, details of contract agreement
negotiations with Greenfield Global Inc., and the parameters of participating
in the federal temporary foreign worker program.

Members discussed the anticipated working life left with the current grain
dryer, availability of additional natural gas supply, the purchase plan for the
new grain dryer based on the available gas supply, and the average life of a
grain dryer.

There was discussion regarding benefits of providing the drying services
versus the revenue gained, new grain dryer efficiency, and the possible use
of a stored gas reserve to accommodate the additional natural gas required
for the new dryer.

Members noted the potential St. Lawrence Seaway strike and the possible
impacts the strike may have on vessels and the Port of Johnstown.

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: C. Ward

That the Port of Johnstown Management Committee received and reviewed
items 8. a) Grain Operations Report, b) Maintenance Report, c) Capital
Projects Report, d) Financial Report/Investment Update, e) Vessel Traffic
Report, and f) General Manager’'s Report.

Carried

g) Marina Waterfront Project # 324-022

Committee was provided with a summary of the report and discussed the
following areas: Port maintenance liability, possible tenant contributions to
the project completion, future benefits to the businesses in the area,
accessibility requirements, tender advertising, the possibility of the Port
acquiring the leased businesses in future, leaving availability of future
expansion and not limiting future agri-tourism opportunities.

Moved by: T. Deschamps
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10.

11.

Seconded by: C. Ward

That the Port Management Committee:

1. Awards the 2023 Marina Waterfront Repair Project #324-022 to Kehoe
Marine Construction Ltd. in the amount of $126,917.00 excluding HST
with a contingency of 25% for engineering and potential overages; and

2. Authorizes the Port General Manager accepts in writing the contractor
tender on behalf of the Port of Johnstown.

Approval of Disbursements — Port Accounts
Members clarified the 10% hold back for the bin wall project.

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: W. Smail

That Port of Johnstown Management Committee approves payment of Port
invoices circulated and numbered as follows:

Withdrawals Total: $134,473.10
Batch 18 EFT $26,021.89
Batch 19 CHEQUES $332,036.69
Batch 20 EFT $343,871.97
Batch 21 CHEQUE $325.44

Total of Direct Withdrawal
& Batch Listings: $836,729.09
Carried

Councillor Inquiries/Notices of Motion

Mayor Deschamps clarified that the Port of Johnstown financial contribution
obligations to the Aquatarium for the Port display were fully met and noted
possible future marketing tool contribution opportunities.

Ms. Hernandez suggested review of the current Port of Johnstown website
and marketing for a possible update.

Chair's Report
The Chair reported on the following:

e Attended the H20 conference

¢ Noted the sale of Logistec to a private company.

e Highlighted a future meeting with the Ogdensburg Port Authority
regarding possible collaboration efforts.
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12. Question Period — None
13. Closed Session - None
14.  Adjournment

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: C. Ward

That the Committee meeting adjourns at 8:40 p.m.
Carried

These minutes were approved by Port Management Committee this 20 day
of November, 2023.

Chair Deputy Clerk
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MINUTES
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Monday, November 6, 2023, 6:30 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.

Johnstown Ontario

PRESENT: Councillor Chris Ward
Mayor Tory Deschamps
Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough
Councillor Joe Martelle

REGRETS: Councillor Waddy Smail
Kimberly Martin (Advisory Member)

STAFF: Rebecca Crich, Clerk
Candise Newcombe, Deputy Clerk
Wendy VanKeulen, Community Development Coordinator
Sean Nicholson, Treasurer

Others Present Rachael Porter, Recreation Coordinator

1. Call to Order — Chair, Chris Ward
Councillor Ward called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
2. Approval of Agenda

The Chair noted that the items listed on the agenda will be shifted down to
accommodate members from Alantra Leasing Inc. as the first delegation of the
meeting.

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: J. Martelle

That the agenda be approved as amended to add an additional delegation
specifically a presentation from Alantra Leasing Inc. and that the remaining
delegation items be renumbered.

Carried
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest & the General Nature
Thereof
None.
COW - CDC - November 6, 2023 1
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4. Business Arising from Previous Committee Meeting Minutes (if any)

None.
5. Delegations and Presentations
a. Alantra Leasing Inc. - General Services Presentation - Markus de Winter

and Trevor Tabor

Committee was provided with an outline of company operations which
included 3 divisions; rentals, panels, and modular builds. The proposed
development is to accommodate a climate-controlled distribution and
maintenance location, which will facilitate the indoor fabrication of
materials. Mr. de Winter highlighted the many benefits of controlled indoor
fabrication of panels which included controlled circumstances and
expedited development timelines.

Committee welcomed Alantra Leasing Inc. to the Township's industrial
park area.

b. Digital Service Squad; Progress and Update; Taylor Prosser, South
Grenville Digital Main Street Coordinator

Mr. Prosser provided Committee with a brief overview of the programming
to date and outlined the future goals of the program. Mr. Prosser reviewed
grants received to date per municipality, available programming, past
programming participation, and future rounds of grants/programming
potentially available.

Committee noted their support of the programming and confirmed the
continued onboarding of new businesses within the Township.

C. Baseload Power; Seeking Municipal Support for Battery Energy Storage
Project; Jonathan Sandler, President

Mr. Sandler provided a brief summary of the Community Meeting held in
Johnstown on November 1. There was discussion regarding the following:
road standards for emergency response vehicles, community benefits of
the proposed program, local job creation, the public consultation process,
clarified Independent Electricity System Operators (IESO) pre-qualification
standards, land lease agreement terms, and collaboration efforts between
Baseload Power and the Township Fire Department to implement a site-
specific safety plan.

The timeline of support was clarified and it was noted that a draft
resolution of municipal support would be discussed later on the agenda.

d. Proposed Development at 608 County Rd 2 and Request for Easement;
Dave Annable, Annable Designs

Mr. Annable introduced a development proposal for an additional 16-18
units on the property and requested municipal support for the use of an
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unopened road allowance adjacent to the property to help meet site
requirements. Discussion was held on the possibility of a future land use
agreement, the use of road allowance as emergency egress, the possible
implementation of a 6m pathway for emergency allowance, the benefits of
paving the emergency egress area, the proximity of the garbage depot to
neighbouring residential uses and previous attempts to purchase land
from an adjacent owner.

6. Action/Information/Discussion Items

a. Live: Land Use Planning

1.

Application for Zoning Bylaw Amendment, 2084 Dundas Street
(Zanderplan Inc. o/b 2733521 Ontario Inc.)

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: T. Deschamps

That Committee recommend that Council adopt an amendment to
Zoning Bylaw 2022-37 for the property at 2084 Dundas Street, as
attached.

Carried

Members noted that the current zoning would still permit future
commercial use of the property.

Application for Zoning Bylaw Amendment, 2073 Dundas Street
(Zanderplan Inc. o/b 2733521 Ontario Inc.)

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

That Committee recommend that Council adopt an amendment to
Zoning Bylaw 2022-37 for the property at 2073 Dundas Street, as
attached.

Carried

Members clarified the location of the emergency exits for each
residential unit.

Discussion: Baseload Power Seeking Municipal Support for Battery
Energy Storage Project

Committee discussed the following: community benefit payment
amounts, concerns with the sustainability of the proposed business
model, and the approval process following receiving municipal
support through the draft resolution.

Committee directed staff to continue working with the proponent to
update the draft resolution to include the community benefit fund
amounts.
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7.

COW - CDC - November 6, 2023

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

That Committee recommend that Council support the draft motion
for the Baseload Power Battery Energy Storage Project, and that
the motion include additional information from Baseload Power
regarding the Community Benefit Fund contribution amounts.

Carried

Discussion: Easement Request over Township Property in favour of
608 County Rd 2

Committee reviewed the report and discussed potential impacts of
losing the road allowance, limitations to future development in the
area, concerns regarding emergency exits, and addressing
possible issues through the site plan control process.

Action: Implementing Official Plan Consent Policies -
Hydrogeological Assessment and Terrain Analysis

Committee was provided with a summary of the report and
discussed the following: the severity of the current OP wording,
provincial guideline requirements, hydrogeological (hydro-G) study
policies of Rideau Lakes, reducing red tape for development, land
study requirements for lot sizes under and over 0.4 ha, the
severance application process, study costs, and the risk mitigation
process proposed should the hydro-g study no longer be a
requirement.

Committee suggested deferring discussion to the December
Committee of the Whole- Administration and Operations meeting,
and requested that staff provide a report on conditions/criteria
where the hydrogeological study is procedurally required.

Work: Economic Development

None.

Play: Recreation

1.

Information: Recreation Update and Upcoming Events

Committee was provided with a summary of the report and
discussed the financial reporting requirements of community groups
and identified the overseeing body of not-for-profit groups and their
financial reporting requirements.

Inquiries/Notices of Motion

None.
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8. Question Period
None.

9. Closed Session
None.

10. Adjournment

The Chair highlighted that this is the final Community Development meeting of
2023, and thanked committee members and staff for all of their work.

Moved by: T. Deschamps
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

That Committee does now adjourn at 9:14 p.m.

Carried

Chair Deputy Clerk
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MINUTES
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
ADMINISTRATION & OPERATIONS

Monday, November 13, 2023, 6:30 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.

Johnstown Ontario

PRESENT: Mayor Tory Deschamps
Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough
Councillor Joe Martelle
Councillor Chris Ward
John Hunter (Advisory Member)
Karen Roussy (Advisory Member)

REGRETS: Councillor Waddy Smail

STAFF: Dave Grant, CAO
Sean Nicholson, Treasurer
Gord Shaw, Director of Operations
Brian Moore, Fire Chief
Mike Spencer, Manager of Parks, Recreation & Facilities
Eric Wemerman, Chief Water/Sewer Operator
Chris LeBlanc, Manager of Public Works

OTHERS PRESENT: Steve Roberts, Fire Training Officer

1. Call to Order — Chair, Mayor Deschamps
Mayor Deschamps called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m.

Chair acknowledged the delayed start time and recognized the long-term
employee recipients for their service and dedication.

2. Approval of Agenda

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That the agenda be approved as presented.

Carried

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest & the General Nature
Thereof
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a. J. Martelle - Scott Road Transfer Station Waste Management Bylaw

Update
Personally owned business previously involved with Transfer Station
operations.
4. Business Arising from Previous Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes
(if any)
Nil
5. Delegations and Presentations
a. South Nation Conservation Authority - Septic System Program - Alison
McDonald

Ms. McDonald provided a brief overview and reminder of the variety of
programs and services available through SNCA was provided to
Committee. The primary focus of the presentation was to review the Septic
program following the first year of transition from the health unit to SNCA.
Highlights included number of staff, number of permits issued and site
visits completed in the second half of 2022 and to date in 2023. It was
noted that there is an inspector in Leeds and Grenville on a daily basis.
SNCA emphasized the importance of the Township and residents
obtaining value for the service and ensuring high quality functioning septic
systems. SNCA is supportive of affordable housing and open to finding
innovative and creative ways to adapt while ensuring development
servicing is completed in a safe and appropriate manner.

Committee inquired on large scale rural systems, reduced lot size and
additional residential units. SNCA noted that systems with a capacity of
less than 10,000 liters per day are regulated through Part 8 of the Building
Code and systems greater than 10,000 liters per day are regulated by
MECP through and ECA. The program is generally receiving positive
feedback following a few hiccups during the initial transition phase.
Committee members noted speaking with two major installers in the area
and agreed feedback was generally positive. SNCA will touch base with
staff on a septic education program.

Committee members thanked SNCA for the presentation and a copy will
be placed on file.

b. Potentia Renewables Inc - Seeking Municipal Support for Battery Energy
Storage Project - Will Patterson & Juliana Velez

The presenter provided a brief overview of the company and indicated that
it is 100% Canadian owned, has 30% of the renewable energy projects in
Ontario. It was noted that the company has expertise in energy storage
however none in operation. The presenter highlighted the open house on
November 7t with approximately 20 people in attendance, summarizing
general support for setbacks and buffering, interest in the recycling
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process and questions/concerns on fire risk. There would be an agreed
upon Emergency Response Plan prepared and demands on the local
department would be minor in nature. The project would establish an
annual community benefit fund (CBF) throughout its operational life span.
The quantum noted was $500.00 per MW.

Committee members inquired on the indigenous consultation status and it
was confirmed that a separate agreement outside the CBF would be in
place. Committee received confirmation that this is a battery storage
project and there is no intent or potential to convert to a wind or solar
power project. It was noted that the storage project would support the
needs of Eastern Ontario. Committee members noted there would be a
requirement to have the CFB outlined and included as part of the letter of
support/council resolution.

Committee members thanked Mr. Patterson for the presentation and a
copy will be placed on file.

6. Consent Agenda

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee recommend that the following consent agenda items be received
as presented:

a. 3rd Quarter Fire Report [See item 8a]
b. 3rd Quarter Operations Report [See item 8b]

Carried

7. Discussion Iltems
a. Future of Natural Gas Expansion - Discussion Paper

The committee members reviewed the draft response to the discussion
paper issued by MOE. Suggestions included greater emphasis on
residential home heating to fill the gap and incorporating previous
delegation package information for additional background and context. A
revised version will be prepared based on the feedback.

b. Potentia Renewables Inc. Battery Energy Storage Project Request for
Municipal Support

Committee members indicated general support for the project and the
requirement to have the CFB outlined and included as part of the letter of
support/council resolution. It was noted that there was openness to have
further discussion on the community benefit fund should the project
proceed. A resolution will be prepared for the November Council meeting.
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8.

Action/Information ltems

a.

3rd Quarter Fire Report - CONSENT

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee receives the 3rd Quarter Fire Report as presented.

Carried

3rd Quarter Operations Report - CONSENT

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee receives the 3rd Quarter Operations Report as presented.

Carried

2024 Township Pre-Budget Overview

The treasurer introduced the topic and targeted trying to achieve inflation
or slightly below as the benchmark for adequately maintaining current
levels of service. Any adjustments to levels of service would have a
corresponding impact up or down. As background, the treasurer provided
a 2023 tax collection review/analysis and spending analysis by municipal
service before touching on impacts to 2024 tax collection. Operationally,
some known or potential increases to the tax levy/funding include COLA,
OPP fees, community grants and donations and a slight decrease in
OMPF. The treasurer highlighted that we are still in an inflationary period
and this will affect routine maintenance (fuel, parts, repairs and materials).
The balancing factor is higher than expected interest rates. The draft 5-
year capital plan was reviewed and will be further developed based on the
asset management plan, level of service, strategic planning and additional
input from Council. Clarification was provided on Reid Street and that
underground infrastructure work would take place ahead of road
resurfacing.

Committee members provided some initial comments and included
concern with what appears to be a gap in recreational services around
Spencerville and the need to undertake studies to have shelf ready
projects available. Opportunities for study partnership with North Grenville
may exist and suggestion to incorporate new arena build to coincide with
decommissioning timetable of existing facility. Returning with options to
make the basketball/tennis courts more useable without undertaking a full
retrofit, grant writing support for applications, and additional planning
support. The meeting schedule for upcoming budget discussion is:

Budget Meeting # 1 - January 8" COW-AO (Capital) - 6:30pm
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Budget Meeting # 2 - January 25" Special COW-AO (Capital) — 5:00pm
Budget Meeting # 3 — February 12" COW-AO (Operating) — 6:30pm

Budget Meeting # 4 — February 22" Special COW-AQO (Operating) —
5:00pm

Budget Meeting # 5 — March 11" COW-AO Final (Consolidated) — 6:30pm

Calendar invites will be sent to committee members. Committee thanked
the Treasurer for the presentation and a copy will be placed on file.

d. NFPA Certification Update

The FD Training Officer provided a high-level overview and background of
the NFPA certification programs and a snapshot completion percentage of
current membership. The timeline for full implementation is July 1, 2026. A
NFPA 1001 FF level 2 program will take place in 2024 and upon its
completion its estimated that close to 80% will have the minimum
certification required through the Regulation. Committee members
inquired about frequency of certification and what happens when new
members come aboard after July 2026. The training officer confirmed that
this is a one-time certification currently and an established set of
expectations is under development so new members have a solid
understanding of commitment upon joining the fire service. Committee
members thanked the training officer for the report.

e. Surplus Fire Department Tanker Auction Results

Committee members sought clarification on whether the reserve was an
interest bearing account.

Moved by: J. Martelle
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee recommend that Council direct the Treasurer to place
$70,762.50 from the sale of the surplus tanker into the fire department
vehicle reserve fund.

Carried

f. Scott Road Transfer Station Waste Management Bylaw Update

J. Martelle declared a conflict on this item. (Personally owned business
previously involved with Transfer Station operations. ;)

Councillor Martelle left the table and did not participate in the discussion

Staff provided a high-level overview of the updated bylaw. Committee
members inquired on the pricing differences between the 2011 and
proposed bylaw, hours of operation, accepting household hazardous
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waste and removal of brush/leaf charge. The price differences relate to
when the landfill site was in operation prior to shifting to a transfer site, an
ECA amendment would be required to accept HHW or change hours of
operation. Staff noted that a list of potential changes could be developed
in preparation of one larger amendment verses a multitude of smaller
amendments to save time and cost.

Councillor Martelle assumed his spot back at the table following vote.

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: C. Ward

That Committee recommends that Council adopt the proposed updated
Transfer Station Waste Management bylaw, as attached.

Carried

9. Councillor Inquiries/Notices of Motion

Deputy Mayor Dillabough inquired about moving current or adding christmas
decorations to County Road 2 by the mall in Cardinal. The Deputy Mayor also
inquired about the possibility of lighting the large tree at cenotaph and permission
for the Cardinal Legion to use the two smaller trees for fundraising/decorating.

Councillor Martelle sought a status update on the canal bank stabilization report.
It was noted that Staff are meeting with SNCA and Kollaard & Associates on
November 14

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

That Committee recommend that meeting curfew be extended beyond 10:00pm.

Carried

10. Mayor’s Report
Nil

11. Question Period
Nil

12. Closed Session

Moved by: J. Martelle
Seconded by: S. Dillabough

THAT Committee proceeds into closed session at 9:48 p.m. in order to address a
matter pertaining to:

COW - AO - November 13, 2023 6
Page 29 of 175



13.

14.

a. Section 239(2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees; Specifically: Operational
Sustainability and Minutes of Closed Session dated September 11, 2023
and October 10, 2023.

b. Section 239(2)c) Acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or
local board; Specifically: Byers Road Property

Carried

a. Section 239 (2)(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual,

including municipal or local board employees; Specifically: Operational
Sustainability and Minutes of Closed Session dated September 11, 2023
and October 10, 2023

b. Section 239 (2)(c) A proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land
by the municipality or local board; Specifically: Byers Rd Property

Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: J. Martelle

THAT the closed session meeting of Committee does now adjourn and the
open meeting does now resume at 10:47 p.m.

Carried

Report Out of Closed Session

Committee met and discussed personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees; Specifically: Operational
Sustainability and direction was provided to the CAO

Committee met and discussed a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition
of land by the municipality or local board; Specifically: Byers Rd Property and
direction was provided to the CAO

Moved by: C. Ward
Seconded by: J. Martelle

That Committee receives and approves the closed session minutes dated
September 11, 2023 and October 10, 2023.

Carried
Adjournment
Moved by: S. Dillabough
Seconded by: J. Martelle
That Committee does now adjourn at 10:49 p.m.
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Carried

Chair CAO

COW - AO - November 13, 2023 8
Page 31 of 175



MINUTES
PUBLIC MEETING

Monday, November 20, 2023, 6:00 PM
South Edwardsburgh Community Centre
24 Sutton Dr.

Johnstown Ontario

PRESENT: Mayor Tory Deschamps

Deputy Mayor Stephen Dillabough
Councillor Joe Martelle

Councillor Waddy Smail
Councillor Chris Ward

STAFF: Rebecca Crich, Clerk

Wendy Van Keulen, Community Development Coordinator
Candise Newcombe, Deputy Clerk
Sean Nicholson, Treasurer

PUBLIC: Ms. Linda Chapeski

Mr. Dave Chapeski
Mr. Dave Dobbie
Mr. Rick Foubert
Mr. Yves Dupont

Call Meeting to Order

Mayor Deschamps called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. and reminded the
members of the public present to sign in on the sheet provided to record their
attendance as part of the public meeting minutes.

Welcome and Introductions

Mayor Deschamps welcomed those present, introduced the members of Council
and the subject of the meeting.

It was noted that Council was in attendance to hear comments on the proposed
amendments and not to make decisions on the application at this time.

The Community Development Coordinator noted that this meeting was
advertised in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act through
advertisements in the local newspapers, mailed notifications to public agencies
as required by the Planning Act, and advertised on the Township's website and
social media platforms.

Public Meeting - Proposed Official Plan and Zoning Bylaw Amendments - November 20,

2023
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It was noted that the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville is the approval
authority for local Official Plans and local Official Plan Amendments. The Council
of the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal was noted to be the approval
authority for the Township's Zoning Bylaw and any Zoning Bylaw Amendments.

The Community Development Coordinator noted that anyone who wishes to
comment on the proposed amendments would be given the opportunity to do so.
Comments made at tonight's meeting were noted to be recorded in the meeting
minutes and become public record. Individuals wishing to speak were asked to
provide their name for the Deputy Clerk.

It was noted that should questions arise at the meeting that are left unanswered,
they may be addressed in a follow up report from Staff and the Township
Planners.

It was noted that if individuals do not make an oral presentation tonight or a
written submission to the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal before the
decision is made on these amendments, they will not be entitled to appeal
Council's decision to the Ontario Land Tribunal or be added as a party to a
hearing unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are reasonable grounds to do
SO.

To be notified of Council's decision, it was noted that a written request must be
made to the Community Development Coordinator (CDC). Without this written
request, an individual will not receive a notice of Council's decision.

3. Proposal Details

The Community Development Coordinator noted that Township Council has
initiated an initial review of the Township's minimum lot area requirements for
residential lots within the Township's rural area and has proposed a general
amendment to the Township's Official Plan, under Section 17 of the Planning Act.
This was noted to be the second Official Plan amendment since its approval in
2020.

The purpose of the amendment was noted to revise policies to reduce the
minimum lot area requirement from 1.0 hectare to 0.4 hectares throughout the
Township.

The Amendment was noted to include the proposed changes to a number of
sections in the Official Plan, including:

e Rural Policy Area, section 3.4;
e \Water and Wastewater Services, section 5.4; and
e General Policies under Land Division, section 7.1.1.

The effect of the amendment was noted to be to establish a new minimum lot
area requirement of 0.4 hectares for new lots created within the Township,
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reducing the minimum lot area requirement for rural properties within the
Township where development is to occur on private or partial services.

To implement the proposed changes to the Official Plan, a general amendment to
the Township's Zoning Bylaw is proposed, under Section 34 of the Planning Act.
The amendment would establish a minimum lot area of 0.4 hectares and a
minimum lot frontage of 45m for the Rural and Limited Services Residential
zones.

4. Public Comment

The Mayor offered the opportunity for public comments on the proposed
amendment.

Ms. Linda Chapeski asked that Council consider an additional amendment to
allow development on existing lots that are within 500-meters of a quarry. Ms.
Chapeski noted that the previous zoning bylaw only required a 250-meter
setback. The setback was increased during the recent comprehensive zoning
bylaw review, making it more difficult to develop on lots that are unable to meet
this setback.

Ms. Linda Chapeski noted concerns with water supply availability to
accommodate the proposed intensification throughout the Township, highlighting
the issue of wells drying up in Osgoode. She requested that Council take into
consideration all environmental effects of the proposed intensification and when
hydrogeological study may be needed.

Mr. Dave Dobbie noted his support of the initiative to decrease lot size
requirements to encourage development of housing and noted that he believes
that the Township's water supply levels would support the proposed
intensification. He noted his concerns with restrictions to severing land in the
agriculture area and proposed a review of additional areas of the Township's
Zoning Bylaw and Official Plan.

The Mayor provided an additional opportunity for public comment. It was noted
that no additional members of the public who were in attendance at the meeting
made comments on the application.

The Mayor noted that written comments could be submitted to Council through
the Community Development Coordinator up until the date the decision on the
amendment is made.

5. Next Steps

The Mayor noted that Staff will work with the Township Planner at Novatech to
prepare a final report, taking into consideration any comments heard tonight and
any written comments submitted.

Council will receive the final report and may adopt the amendments at the next
regular meeting of Council on November 27th.
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The Mayor noted that should the Official Plan Amendment be adopted by
Council, an application will be made to the Counties for approval. Any related
Zoning Bylaw Amendment will not come into effect until the proposed Official
Plan Amendment has been approved.

6. Adjournment

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:20 p.m.

Deputy Clerk
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-

*\1 ‘ ""*& Vs
Moved By: E \%{
4 A

'. ./ y
Seconded By: k‘&

WHEREAS Ventnor Energy Storage LP is proposing to construct and operate a Long-
Term Reliability Project, as defined and with the characteristics outlined in the table
below, under the Long-Term Request for Proposals (“LT1 RFP”) issued by the
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”").

Unique Project ID of the Long-Term L T1-066-9-1
Reliability Project: LT1-066-9-2
R LT1-066-9-3

Name of the Long-Term Reliability

Project: Ventnor Energy Storage Project

Legal Name of Proponent: Ventnor Energy Storage LP

Technology of the Long-Term Reliability
Project:

Maximum Contract Capacity of the Long-
Term Reliability Project (in MW):

Property Identification Number (PIN): 68139 0370 and 68139 0371

Battery Energy Storage

up to 300MW

AND WHEREAS Pursuant to the LT1 RFP, Proposals that receive the formal support of
the local jurisdictional authorities of all the project communities in which the Long-Term
Reliability Project is located in the form of a support resolution will be awarded Rated
Criteria points for the purpose of ranking the Proposal in relation to other Proposals for
a contract under the LT1 RFP;

O Carried 0O Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By:
Seconded By:

AND WHEREAS Ventnor Energy Storage LP has committed to establishing a
Community Benefit Fund, as attached, designed to benefit the residents in
Edwardsburgh Cardinal;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The council of the Corporation of the
Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal supports the development, construction and
operation of the Long-Term Reliability Project, as identified by the PINs in the above
table, on the Municipal Lands;

AND FURTHER THAT This resolution's sole purpose is to enable the Ventnor Energy
Storage LP to receive Rated Criteria Points under LT1 RFP or to satisfy its obligations
under any awarded LT1 Contract and may not be used for the purpose of any other
form of approval in relation to the Proposal or Long-Term Reliability Project or for any
other purpose. Rated Criteria points will be used to rank the Proponent’s Proposal in
relation to other Proposals received by the IESO under the LT1 RFP.

O Carried 0O Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL

Page 37 of 175



COMMITMENT LETTER

To: The Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal (the “Township”)
From: Ventnor Energy Storage LP (the “Proponent”)

BACKGROUND:

(A)  The Province of Ontario is entering into a period of significant electricity need and has
directed the Independent Electricity System Operator (the “IESQO”) to procure the electricity
resources to meet these needs;

(B)  To procure such electricity resources the IESO is administering a number of price
competitive request for proposals, including the IESO Request for Proposals for the Procurement
of Long-Term Electricity Reliability (the “LT1 RFP”) with an expected proposal submission date
of December 12, 2023;

(C)  The Proponent is developing the Ventnor Battery Energy Storage Project (the “Project™)
in the Township, with a contract capacity of up to 300 megawatts (“MW?”) for the purposes of
submitting a proposal for the Project into the LT1 RFP (the “Proposal”);

(D)  If the Proposal is successful in the LT1 RFP, it is contemplated that the Project will be
awarded and will enter into a 20-year power purchase agreement with the IESO (the “PPA”);

(E)  Aspart of the development of the Project, the Proponent has consulted with the Township,
has held a public community meeting and will be making a further delegation to the Township to
request, from the Township’s council, a municipal support confirmation in the IESO prescribed
form (the “MSC”) for the purposes of including the MSC in the Proponent’s Proposal to the LT1
RFP;
(F)  The Proponent has communicated to the Township that if the Project is awarded a PPA that
is subsequently executed by the Proponent and the Project reaches commercial operations in
accordance with the terms and conditions outlined below the Proponent will establish a community
benefit fund in relation to the Project, which will provide funding to the Township to be used for
community purposes.

In respect to the foregoing and in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this
Commitment Letter the Proponent agrees and commits to the Township as follows:

1. If: (a) the Proponent is awarded and executes a PPA pursuant to the LT1 RFP, and (b) the
Project is constructed and reaches commercial operations in accordance with the PPA, then during
each year of operations of the Project pursuant to the PPA, the Proponent will provide annual
funding to the Township, for community benefit purposes, in the amount of One Thousand Dollars
($1,000.00 CDN) per MW of contract capacity of the Project.
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2. It is contemplated that, if the Proponent is awarded and executes a PPA pursuant to the LT1
RFP, during the municipal permitting process in respect of the Project with the Township, the
parties will negotiate and execute a definitive community benefit agreement (the “Community
Benefit Agreement”) and that such Community Benefit Agreement will incorporate the payment
obligations and terms and conditions provided herein and such other terms as are mutually agreed
upon by the Parties (i.e. parameters with spending and allocation of community vibrancy fund)
and will replace this Commitment Letter, which shall then terminate and no longer have any eftect
for the Proponent, and the Proponent will no longer have any obligations and will be released from
all of its obligations in connection with this Commitment Letter. Until such time as the Community
Benefit Agreement is in effect, this Commitment Letter will remain binding and in effect, subject
to and in accordance the terms and conditions contained herein.

3. For certainty, the Proponent shall have no obligations, commitments or agreements with
the Township pursuant to this Commitment Letter, including without limitation any payment
obligations, and this Commitment Letter will automatically terminate and be of no force and effect
if:

(a) the Proponent determines, in its sole discretion and for any reason, to not submit a Proposal
into the LT1 RFP, including without limitation if a MSC is not provided by the Township
for the Project prior to December 12, 2023;

(b) the Project is not selected by the IESO pursuant to the LT1 RFP and the Proponent is not
awarded a PPA;

(c) the Proponent, for any reason, does not enter into a PPA pursuant to the LT1 RFP; or

(d) the Project, for any reason, does not reach commercial operations in accordance with the
PPA.

Dated this 23" day of November 2023

VENTNOR ENERGY STORAGE LP,
represented by its general partner,
1000671560 ONTARIO INC.

o bl A dln

Name: Jonathan Sandler

Title: President
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By:
Seconded By:

WHEREAS Skyview BESS Limited Partnership is proposing to construct and operate a
Long-Term Reliability Project, as defined and with the characteristics outlined in the
table below, under the Long-Term Request for Proposals (“LT1 RFP”) issued by the
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”).

Unique Project ID of the Long-Term
Reliability Project:

Name of the Long-Term Reliability
Project:

LT1-074-7-2

Skyview 2 Battery Energy Storage Project

Legal Name of Proponent: Skyview BESS Limited Partnership

Technology of the Long-Term
Reliability Project:

Maximum Contract Capacity of the
Long-Term Reliability Project (in MW):

Lithium-ion battery energy storage facility

up to 450MW

68138-0121, 68138-0122, 68138-0171,
68138-0175, 68138-0176

Property Identification Number (PIN):

AND WHEREAS Pursuant to the LT1 RFP, Proposals that receive the formal support of
the local jurisdictional authorities of all the project communities in which the Long-Term
Reliability Project is located in the form of a support resolution will be awarded Rated
Criteria points for the purpose of ranking the Proposal in relation to other Proposals for
a contract under the LT1 RFP;

O Carried 0O Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By:
Seconded By:

AND WHEREAS Skyview BESS Limited Partnership has committed to establishing a
Community Benefit Fund, as attached, designed to benefit the residents in
Edwardsburgh Cardinal;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Council of the Corporation of the
Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal hereby supports the development, construction
and operation of the Long-Term Reliability Project on the Municipal Lands;

AND FURTHER THAT This resolution's sole purpose is to enable Skyview BESS
Limited Partnership to receive Rated Criteria Points under LT1 RFP or to satisfy its
obligations under any awarded LT1 Contract and may not be used for the purpose of
any other form of approval in relation to the Proposal or Long-Term Reliability Project or
for any other purpose. Rated Criteria points will be used to rank the Proponent’s
Proposal in relation to other Proposals received by the IESO under the LT1 RFP.

O Carried 0O Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL

Page 41 of 175



D - ( ‘ -
l ()tcn tl:‘ 200 WELLINGTON STREET WEST - SUITE 1102
RENEWABLES TORONTO, ONTARIO, CANADA M5V 3C7

Attn: Mayor Tory Deschamps
Township of Edwardsburgh-Cardinal
18 Centre St. PO Box 129
Spencerville, ON KOE 1X0

November 22, 2023

RE: Township of Edwardsburgh-Cardinal — Community Benefit Fund

Skyview BESS Limited Partnership (the “Proponent”), a limited partnership registered in the Province
of Ontario, is proposing the Skyview 2 Battery Energy Storage Project (“Skyview 2 BESS” or the
“Project”) within the Township of Edwardsburgh-Cardinal and intends to bid the Project into the
Independent Electricity System Operator’s (IESO) LT1 Request for Proposals.

If the Proponent is awarded a contract in the IESO’s LT1 procurement, the Proponent commits to
establishing a Community Benefit Fund designed to benefit the residents in Edwardsburgh-Cardinal
and will make annual contributions to this fund in the amount of $300,000 per year beginning at the
Project’s commercial operation date (2027) until the end of the IESO’s LT1 contract term (2048). Over
S6MM is estimated to be distributed directly for the benefit of the community over the approximately
21-year term of the Community Benefit Fund.

The terms and conditions under which the Community Benefit Fund will be established, administered,
and funded will be decided upon the Proponent’s execution of the LT1 contract.

Thank you and we look forward to working together with the Township of Edwardsburgh-Cardinal on
this exciting opportunity.

Sincerely,

F (e

Ben Greenhouse

Chief Executive Officer

Skyview BESS Limited Partnership
Potentia Renewables Inc.

WWW.POTENTIARENEWABLES.COM
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023

Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By:
Seconded By:

THAT Municipal Council direct the Treasurer to place $70,762.50 from the sale of the
surplus tanker into the fire department vehicle reserve fund, as recommended by the
Committee of the Whole — Administration & Operations.

(] Carried [ Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By:
Seconded By:

WHEREAS the Township received an application through the Municipal Asset
Naming/Renaming Policy, requesting the naming of 3 streets within the proposed
Lockmaster's Meadow Subdivision development; and

WHEREAS the Lockmaster's Meadow Subdivision development would like to confirm
the proposed street names to be incorporate into future design and development plans
and schedules; and

WHEREAS the period for public comment on the naming of three future municipal
streets has concluded, with no negative comments being received by the Township; and

WHEREAS the Municipal Asset Naming/Renaming Policy requires Council to endorse
the naming of municipal streets through a resolution to official name a current/future
municipal asset.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the
Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal endorses the naming of 3 streets with the
Lockmaster's Meadow Subdivision development in Cardinal as follows:

e Lockhouse Street
e Balsam Street
e Conifer Lane

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the United Counties of
Leeds and Grenville as notification of the street naming.

O Carried 0O Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL
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E c TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL
ACTION ITEM

= Cd

Committee: Regular Council

Date: November 27, 2023

Department: Finance

Topic: Group Benefits RFQ Award

Purpose: To award the RFQ for Group Benefits

Background: At the Committee of the Whole — Administration and Operations meeting
on August 14t 2023, Committee recommended that Council direct the Treasurer to
tender employee benefits for the Township and Port of Johnstown. After further review,
a full tender process is not needed at this time.

What is required is a RFQ for Broker Services. Should this recommendation be
approved, the RFQ will be posted on the Township website on October 29, 2023 and
the RFQ will close on November 15t 2023. The RFQ’s will be reviewed and
recommendation given to Council at the November 27, 2023 regular council meeting.

One deliverable was for the companies to disclose their rate for securing benefit
coverage which is a percentage of the policy total. This rate is paid by the benefit
company not the Township but it is reflected in the overall cost of benefits. While overall
cost was a consideration, service level was the most important factor in determining the
successful proponent.

A total of 5 quotations were received. The companies that submitted quotations were:

BFL Canada — 3.59% to an upset limit of $16,225.

Gallagher Benefit Services — 5%.

GroupHEALTH — Approximately $20,000 in annual savings, no percentage given.
Mosey and Mosey Benefit Plan Consultants — 2.5%

W.A. Pakeman — 2.79%

o=

While W.A. Pakeman was not the lowest overall cost, they scored the highest based on
the Service Quality which makes them the desired quote. There were no service issues
with W.A. Pakeman identified by the Township or Port. Any savings by choosing the
lowest cost provider will be more than offset with higher costs in changing benefit
providers.

Page 1 of 2
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Policy Implications: All financial items over $75,000 require Council approval.

Financial Considerations: W.A. Pakeman is currently the Broker of Record for the
Township so there will be no additional costs incurred to administer the group benefits
plan. W.A. Pakeman will be performing the benefit renewal for 2024 on behalf of the
Township and Port.

Recommendation: THAT Municipal Council award the Group Benefits Tender to W.A.
Pakeman and Associates Ltd. and direct staff to sign a Broker of Record letter with W.A.
Pakeman for a duration no longer than 5 years.

Z [ TS

Treasurer CAO

Page 2 of 2
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Committee: Regular Council

Date: November 27, 2023

Department: Finance

Topic: 2023 Audit Plan and Engagement Letter

Purpose: To obtain Council approval to respond to the auditor’s letter dated November
17, 2023 that accompanied the Audit Service Plan and engagement letter for the 2023
audit to be completed by MNP LLP.

Background: MNP LLP has been appointed as the Township’s audit firm for the 2023
fiscal year audit. They will perform an interim audit November 27-28, 2023 and the year
end audit will take place from February 26 — March 1, 2024. The major change in the
2023 audit will be Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO) which need to be reported as a
PSAB requirement in 2023. The change in year over year fees is an increase of $1,500
for a total of $36,500 to $38,000.

Policy Implications: An Officer is required to sign the engagement letter before the
audit can proceed.

Financial Considerations: Not applicable

Recommendation: THAT Municipal Council receives the 2023 audit plan and
authorizes the Treasurer to sign the engagement letter as a requirement of the annual
audit.

Z Ao T2 S0

Treasurer CAO

Page 1of 1
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MNP

November 17, 2023

Sean Nicholson

Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal
P.O. Box 129

18 Centre Street

Spencerville, ON KOE 1X0

Dear Mr. Nicholson:

This letter will confirm the arrangements discussed with you regarding the services we will render to Corporation of the
Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal (the "Municipality") commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023.

Our responsibilities

We will audit the financial statements of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Accordingly, we will
plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements taken as a
whole are free of material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

Our responsibilities, objective, scope, independence and the inherent limitations of an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards are detailed in Appendix A, which forms part of our mutual
understanding of the terms of this engagement.

Management'’s responsibilities

The operations of the Municipality are under the control of management, which has responsibility for the accurate
recording of transactions and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relating to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Appendix B, which describes in detail management's responsibilities with respect to this engagement, forms part of our
mutual understanding of the terms of this engagement.

Reporting

Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantially in the form illustrated in Appendix C.
Fees and expenses

Our fees and expenses are discussed in detail in Appendix D.

MNP LLP
709 Cotton Mill Street, Cornwall ON, KéH 7K7 T:613.932.3610 F:613.938.3215
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Other matters

We will, as permitted by the Code of Professional Conduct, provide additional services upon request, in areas such as
taxation, leadership and human resource management, communication, marketing, strategic planning, financial
management and technology consulting.

Our standard terms and conditions, included as Appendix E, form part of our mutual understanding of the terms of
this engagement. In the event that you choose to terminate this engagement based on the terms outlined in Appendix
E, we reserve the right to notify all financial statement users of the change.

These terms will continue in effect from year to year, unless changed in writing.

We believe the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding, but if you have any questions, please let us know. If
you find the arrangements acceptable, please acknowledge your agreement to the understanding by signing and

returning the engagement letter to us.

It is a pleasure for us to be of service to you. We look forward to many years of association with you and Corporation
of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal.

Sincerely,

MNP cep

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

encls.
RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal.

Officer Signature Title Date
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Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations

The following details our responsibilities as auditors and the objective, scope, independence and inherent limitations of
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

Our responsibilities, objective and scope

Our audit will be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a
whole are free of material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. If any of the following matters are
identified, they will be communicated to the appropriate level of management:
e Misstatements, resulting from error, other than immaterial misstatements;
e Fraud or any information obtained that indicates that a fraud may exist;
e Material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern;
e Any evidence obtained that indicates non-compliance or possible non-compliance with laws and regulations
has occurred;
e Significant deficiencies in the design or implementation of controls to prevent and detect fraud or
misstatements; and
e Related party transactions identified that are not in the normal course of operations and that involve significant
judgments made by management concerning measurement or disclosure.

The matters communicated will be those that we identify during the course of our audit. Audits do not usually identify
all matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. The type and significance of the
matter to be communicated will determine the level of management to which the communication is directed.

Furthermore, we will consider the Municipality's controls over financial reporting for the purpose of identifying types of
potential misstatement, considering factors that affect the risks of material misstatement, and determining the nature,
timing and extent of auditing procedures necessary for expressing our opinion on the financial statements. This
consideration will not be sufficient to enable us to render an opinion on the effectiveness of controls over financial
reporting nor to identify all significant deficiencies in the Municipality’s system of financial controls.

Independence

The Code of Professional Conduct require that we are independent when conducting this engagement. We will
communicate to Council any relationships between the Municipality (including related entities) and MNP LLP (“MNP")
that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

If matters should arise during this engagement that can reasonably be assumed to have impaired our independence,
we may need to withdraw from this engagement.

Audit limitations

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. This includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including disclosures.

It is important to recognize that an auditor cannot obtain absolute assurance that material misstatements in the
financial statements will be detected because of factors such as the use of judgment, selective testing of data, inherent
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Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations (continued from
previous page)

limitations of controls, and the fact that much of the audit evidence available is persuasive rather than conclusive in
nature.

Furthermore, because of the nature of fraud, including attempts at concealment through collusion and forgery, an
audit designed and executed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards may not detect a
material misstatement due to fraud.

While effective controls reduce the likelihood that misstatements will occur and remain undetected, they do not
eliminate that possibility. Therefore, we cannot guarantee that fraud, misstatements and non-compliance with laws and
regulations, if present, will be detected when conducting an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards.

The audit of the financial statements and the issuance of our audit opinion are solely for the use of the Municipality
and those to whom our report is specifically addressed. We make no representations of any kind to any third party in
respect of these financial statements and we accept no responsibility for their use by any third party. If our name is to
be used in connection with the financial statements, you will attach our independent audit report when distributing the
financial statements to third parties.

We ask that our names be used only with our consent and that any information to which we have attached a
communication be issued with that communication unless otherwise agreed to by us.
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Appendix B: Management Responsibilities

During the course of our audit, you will be required to provide and make available complete information that is
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, including:
e Financial records and related data, including data relevant to disclosures made in the financial statements;
e Copies of all minutes of meetings of Council and committees of Council;
e Access to personnel to whom we may direct our inquiries;
¢ Information relating to any known or possible instances of non-compliance with laws, legislative or regulatory
requirements (including financial reporting requirements);
e Information relating to all related parties and related party transactions; and
e Allowing access to those within the entity from whom the auditor determines it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.

Management's responsibility with respect to fraud and misstatement includes:

e The design and implementation of controls for its prevention and detection;

e An assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated;

e Disclosure of situations where fraud or suspected fraud involving management, employees who have
significant roles in controls, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,
have been identified or allegations have been made; and

e Communicating your belief that the effects of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements aggregated
during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we will request a letter of representation from
management at the close of our audit in order to confirm oral representations given to us and reduce the possibility of
misunderstanding concerning matters that are the subject of the representations. These representations are used as
evidence to assist us in deriving reasonable conclusions upon which our audit opinion is based.

If the Municipality plans any reproduction or publication of our report, or a portion thereof, printer's proofs of the
complete documents should be submitted to us in sufficient time for our review, prior to making such documents
publicly available. It will also be necessary for you to furnish us with a copy of the printed report. Further, it is agreed
that in any electronic distribution, for example on Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal’s website,
management is solely responsible for the accurate and complete reproduction of our report and the subject matter on
which we reported, and for informing us of any subsequent changes to such documents. However, we are responsible
to read the documents to ensure accuracy, and consider the appropriateness of other information accompanying the
audited financial statements, upon initial posting.
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Appendix C: lllustrative Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal (the
"Municipality"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the statements of
operations, accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then‘ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Municipality as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in'its net financial assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Municipality in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and-for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Municipality’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Appendix C: lllustrative Independent Auditor's Report (continued from previous page)

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion‘on the effectiveness
of the Municipality’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to-modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Municipality to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Cornwall, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

Page 7.0
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Appendix D: Fees and Expenses

Our fees are determined on the basis of time spent on the engagement at the tariff rates of various members of our
team. Any disbursements will be added to the billing.

The estimate of fees for the audit services to be provided is $33,000.

An additional estimate of fees in regards to the new accounting standard for Asset Retirement Obligations would be in
the range of $3,500 to $5,000.

Invoices will be rendered as work progresses in accordance with the following schedule:

Progress billing #1 - Start of interim audit procedures $ 12,000
Progress billing #2 - Start of year-end audit procedures $ 12,000
Progress billing #3 - Upon review of draft financial statements with $ 8,000
management

Final billing - Upon release of Independent Auditor's Report $ 5,000

In signing this letter, you acknowledge your approval of the above billing schedule and amounts. Invoices expected to
be issued that do not adhere to this schedule, or are in excess of the amounts noted above, will be discussed with you
for your approval. Fees collected will be applied to overdue invoices first, followed by subsequently issued invoices in
order of issuance. If payment is not received in accordance with the above schedule, we will at our discretion cease all
work until the scheduled payments are received.

Our estimated fees are based on our past experience and our knowledge of the Municipality. This estimate relies on
the following assumptions:
e No significant deficiencies in internal controls which cause procedures to be extended;
e No major unadjusted misstatement(s) or un-reconciled balances;
e Significantly all adjusting entries are completed prior to trial balance and journal entries being provided to the
audit team;
e All management and required staff are available as needed;
e Information and working papers required, as outlined in our letter of fiscal year-end requirements, are provided
in the mutually agreed form and timing; and
e There are no changes to the agreed upon engagement timetable and reporting requirements.

We will ask that your personnel, to the extent possible, prepare various schedules and analysis, and make various
invoices and other documents available to our team. This assistance will facilitate the progress of our work and
minimize the cost of our service to you.

If any significant issues arise during the course of our audit work which indicate a possibility of increased procedures or
a change in the audit timetable, these will be discussed with management by the practitioner leading your
engagement so a mutually agreeable solution can be reached. In accordance with our standard terms and conditions,
included as Appendix E, if significant changes to the arrangements set forth in this engagement letter are required, any
change in scope of the engagement will need to be agreed in writing, in a “Change Order” agreement.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions

The following standard terms and conditions and engagement letter to which they are attached form one agreement
(the "Agreement”) and set out the terms and conditions upon which MNP LLP (“MNP") will provide services to you
(the "Municipality”).

1. Timely Performance - MNP will use all reasonable efforts to complete, within any agreed-upon time
frame, the performance of the services described in the engagement letter to which these terms and
conditions are attached. However, MNP shall not be liable for failures or delays in performance that arise
from causes beyond our control, including the untimely performance by the Municipality of its
obligations as set out in the engagement letter.

2. Right to Terminate Services - The Municipality may terminate the engagement upon 30 days written
notice. If this occurs, the Municipality shall pay for time and expenses incurred by MNP up to the
termination date, together with reasonable time and expenses incurred to bring the services to a close in
a prompt and orderly manner. Should the Municipality not fulfil its obligations as set out herein and in
the engagement letter, and in the event that the Municipality fails to remedy such default within 30 days
following receipt of notice from MNP to that effect, MNP may, upon written notification and without
prejudice to its other rights and resources, terminate provision of our services as described in the
engagement letter. In such case, MNP shall not be responsible for any loss, costs, expenses, or damages
resulting from such termination.

3. Change Order - If, subsequent to the date of this engagement letter, the Municipality requires significant
changes to the arrangements set forth in this engagement letter, the Municipality will be required to
agree to the change in scope of the engagement in writing, in a "Change Order" agreement. The
"Change Order" agreement will set forth the revised arrangements and scope of services to be performed
and any related additional fees associated.

4. Fees - Any fee estimates by MNP take into account the agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance
from the Municipality's personnel. MNP undertakes to advise the Municipality's management on a timely
basis should this preparation and assistance not be provided, or should any other circumstances arise
which cause actual time to exceed the estimate.

5. Administrative Expenses - A non-reimbursable administrative expense fee (the “Administrative Fee”)
equal to 5% of the professional fees charged will be levied for administrative expenses. The
administrative fee will be added to the professional fees and will be payable at the same time. Out-of-
pocket expenses, including travel and accommodation expenses, incurred in connection with and
necessary to the provision of our Services will be charged to the client.

6. Billing - Bills will be rendered on a regular basis as the assignment progresses. Accounts are due and
payable upon receipt. Interest may be charged on the balance of any accounts remaining unpaid for
more than 30 days, at a rate of 1.5% per month (19.56% per annum).

7. Taxes - All fees and other charges do not include any applicable federal, provincial, or other goods and
services or sales taxes, or any other taxes or duties whether presently in force or imposed in the future.
The Municipality shall assume and pay any such taxes or duties, without deduction from the fees and
charges hereunder.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

8. Governing Law - The engagement will be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Ontario, and shall be deemed in all respects to be an Ontario contract. The Municipality and
MNP submit to the courts of that jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising under or by virtue of this
Agreement.

0. Working Papers - MNP owns all working papers and files, other materials, reports and work created,
developed or performed during the course of the engagement, including intellectual property used in the
preparation thereof. We will provide management with a copy of all practitioner-prepared working
papers necessary for the Municipality's accounting records. MNP may develop software, including
spreadsheets, documents, databases, and other electronic tools, to assist us with our assignment. As
these tools and working papers were developed specifically for our purposes and without consideration
of any purpose for which the Municipality might use them, any such tools which may be provided to the
Municipality, will be made available on an "as is" basis only, at our discretion, and should not be
distributed to or shared with any third party. Except as indicated in the Code of Professional Conduct or
by any legal proceeding, we have no responsibility to share our working papers with you or with any
other parties.

10.  Personal Data - Except to the extent necessary for the performance of the services, the Municipality shall
not provide any personal information to MNP in connection with this engagement. If personal
information is disclosed to MNP, or is accessed, collected, used, or disclosed by MNP, the Municipality
represents and warrants that it has or will (as required) collect all necessary consents, provide any
necessary notices, and do all such other things as are required under applicable law in respect of such
personal information. Under Canadian and Provincial legislation, “personal information" generally refers
to any information about an identifiable individual that allows such individual to be identified. Should
personal information be disclosed to MNP, or be accessed, collected, used, or disclosed by MNP in
connection with this Agreement, you give us your consent to access, collect, use, or disclose such
personal information. To the extent MNP receives personal information, it will collect, use or disclose it in
accordance with applicable Canadian federal and provincial privacy legislation, the terms of MNP's
privacy policy, available for review at www.mnp.ca/privacy, and the terms contained herein. In the event
of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the MNP privacy policy, the terms of
this Agreement will prevail.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

1.

Confidentiality - “Confidential Information” means any and all information in any form that a party
("Disclosing Party”) provides to the other party (“Receiving Party”) in the course of this Agreement and
that either has been marked as confidential or is of such nature that a reasonable person would treat it as
confidential under like circumstances.

Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is or becomes generally known or available
to the public, through no act or omission on the part of the Receiving Party; (ii) was known by the
Receiving Party prior to receiving such information from the Disclosing Party and without restriction as to
use or disclosure; (iii) has been agreed by the Parties in writing as being excluded from Confidential
Information; (iv) is rightfully acquired by the Receiving Party from a third party who has the right to
disclose it and who provides it without restriction as to use or disclosure; or (v) is independently
developed by or on behalf of the Receiving Party without access to any Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party. Each Party retains ownership of its Confidential Information.

Each party agrees to (i) protect the other's Confidential Information in the same manner as it protects the
confidentiality of its own proprietary and confidential materials but in no event with less than reasonable
care; (ii) use the other's Confidential Information only in relation with the Agreement. Neither Party shall,
except with respect to their employees, partners, contractors, legal or financial advisors, and its affiliates
with a need to know for purposes of this Agreement, disclose to any person any Confidential Information
of the Disclosing Party without the Disclosing Party's prior written consent, except where Confidential
Information may be disclosed by court order, law or other legal requirements. The Municipality
acknowledges that our client files may be periodically reviewed by provincial or national practice
inspectors as required by law, including for reporting-issuers by the Canadian Public Accountability
Board, the Public Company Accounting Board or other regulators, and by other Firm personnel that may
be located extra-provincially to ensure we are adhering to professional and Firm standards.

At the expiry or upon termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall promptly destroy or deliver
to the Disclosing Party all of the Confidential Information furnished to it during the term of this
Agreement, provided, however, that the Receiving Party may retain such Confidential Information in its
confidential files, for compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, professional standards and internal
document retention policies, provided such Confidential Information is provided and treated with the
same protections as is provided under this Agreement.

The Receiving Party shall not, in connection with the foregoing obligations, be required to identify,
destroy, or return Confidential Information held electronically in archive or back-up systems in
accordance with general systems archiving or backup policies and procedures.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

12.

13.

14.

Data Analytics and Benchmarking - The Municipality agrees that MNP may use relevant portions of the
data disclosed to MNP in the course of the Engagement, which may include business, financial, personal
or confidential information (the “Client Data”) for the purpose of performing individualized (using your
data only, for your eyes only) and aggregated benchmarking analytics (using many data

sources). Aggregated benchmarking services will be performed to provide valuable insights on financial
and other trends either (a) within your specific business organization over time, or (b) on an aggregated
basis across an entire industry or sector and will allow MNP to use such information for any business
purposes and to provide services to its clients. None of the analysis generated from aggregated data
processing will contain any information that would allow a third party to identify you. As such, none of
the analytics reporting based on aggregated data will result in a disclosure of Client Data, nor will MNP
re-identify or remove data following the anonymization and aggregation process.

Nature of the Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) - MNP is a registered limited liability partnership, as
permitted by legislation enacted in our governing jurisdiction of the Province of Alberta. This legislation
provides that a partner of an LLP is not personally liable for any of the debts, obligations, or liabilities of
the LLP or any of the other partners which may arise as a result of any negligent act or omission of
another partner of the LLP, or by any employee of the partnership, unless such act or omission is
committed by the partner him or herself or by a person under the partner's direct supervision and
control. All partners of an LLP remain personally liable for any acts or omissions arising as a result of their
own negligence, and for the acts or omissions of those directly under their supervision or control, and
shall continue to be subject to unlimited personal liability for all of the other liabilities of the partnership.
The legislation does not reduce or limit in any way the liability of the partnership itself, and all of the
partnership's assets and insurance coverage remain at risk.

Release and Limitation of Liability - The Municipality and MNP agree to the following with respect to
MNP's liability to the Municipality:

a. Inany action, claim, loss or damage arising out of the engagement, the Municipality agrees that
MNP's liability will be several and not joint and the Municipality may only claim payment from MNP
of MNP's proportionate share of the total liability based on the degree of fault of MNP as finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.

b. Other than for matters finally determined to have resulted from the gross negligence, fraud or willful
misconduct of MNP, whether the claim be in tort, contract, or otherwise:

i. MNP shall not be liable to the Municipality and the Municipality releases MNP for all claims,
damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements) incurred or
suffered by the Municipality related to, arising out of, or in any way associated with the
engagement to the extent that the aggregate of such amounts is in excess of the total
professional fees paid by the Municipality to MNP in connection with this engagement during
the 12 month period commencing from the date of the engagement letter to which these terms
and conditions are attached; and,

ii. MNP shall not be liable to the Municipality for any consequential, indirect, lost profit or similar
damages, or failure to realize expected savings, relating to MNP's services provided under the
engagement letter to which these terms and conditions are attached.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

15.  Indemnity - The Municipality agrees to jointly and severally indemnify and hold harmless MNP against:

a. All claims, damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements) which are
related to, arise out of, or are in any way associated with the engagement, whether the claims are
civil, penal, regulatory, or administrative in nature, other than those finally determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction to have resulted from MNP's gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct;
and,

b. Notwithstanding "a.," all claims, damages, costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and
disbursements) which are related to, arise out of, or are in any way associated with the engagement,
whether the claims are civil, penal, regulatory, or administrative in nature, that arise from or are
based on any deliberate misstatement or omission in any material, information or representation
supplied or approved by any officer or member of the Board of Directors of the Municipality.

For the purposes of paragraph 14. and 15., “MNP” shall mean MNP LLP and its directors, officers, partners,
professional corporations, employees, subsidiaries and affiliates and to the extent providing services
under the engagement letter to which these terms are attached, MNP LLP, its member firms, and all of
their partners, principals, members, owners, directors, staff and agents; and in all cases any successor or
assignee.

16.  Survival of Terms - The Municipality and MNP agree that clauses 14. and 15. will survive termination of
the engagement.

17. Electronic Communications - Unless the Municipality prefers we use a particular manner of
communication and specifies as much in writing, MNP will use whatever form of communication it deems
most efficient in the circumstances. In many instances, this will involve the use of internet e-mail. With
respect to internet e-mail, MNP and the Municipality both acknowledge that neither party has control
over the performance, reliability, availability, or security of internet e-mail. Additionally, MNP staff may be
required or requested to work from your offices during which visits access to and use of and reliance
upon your electronic environment (including but not limited to, your network, Internet, and extranet
resources) is necessitated. The Municipality accepts that MNP shall not be liable for any loss, damage,
expense, harm or inconvenience resulting from any loss, delay, interception, corruption, security breach,
delivery failure, incompatibility, incompleteness or alteration of any document or transmission arising
from the use of e-mail or the transmission of any document outside of MNP's electronic environment.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

18.  Third Party Services or Products - MNP uses certain third-party services or products, including third-
party software. The Municipality agrees to the use by MNP of such third parties to: (i) provide certain
services to you; (i) to support MNP in the performance of the services; or (i) as needed for MNP’s
business operations (the “Purpose”). By signing this Agreement, you agree to MNP disclosing Client Data
to third parties to fulfil the Purpose. While we use third parties located in Canada whenever possible, it is
not always possible to do so in order to provide you with the best client experience possible. Client Data
being uploaded and downloaded through third party networks may transit or be stored or accessed on
servers located outside of your province or country of residence and, in such cases, these third parties
could be required to disclose data, including personal information, in its custody to the governments in a
different jurisdiction, including, government agencies, courts or law enforcement or regulatory agencies
pursuant to the laws of such jurisdictions. To the extent possible, MNP will impose confidentiality
obligations upon these third parties that are comparable to those contained herein, however MNP does
not have control over their conduct and MNP shall not be liable for any loss or damage arising from your
or MNP's use of such third parties.

19.  Praxity - We are an independent accounting firm allowed to use the name "PRAXITY" in relation to our
practice. We are not connected by ownership to any other firm using the name "PRAXITY” and we will be
solely responsible for all work carried out by us on your behalf. In deciding to instruct us you
acknowledge that we have not represented to you that any other firm using the name “PRAXITY" will in
any way be responsible for the work we do.

20.  Solicitation - The Municipality agrees that for a period of one year after completion of the services, it
shall not, directly or indirectly, for itself or for any third party, solicit the services of, hire, contract for the
services of, or otherwise entice away from their partnership, employment or contract of services with
MNP or any MNP Person. In the event of a breach of this section by the Municipality, the Municipality
shall be obliged to pay to MNP liquidated damages in the amount of one hundred fifty (150%) percent of
the total compensation the Municipality or third party offered to pay the individual in their first year of
service to such party, or one hundred fifty (150%) percent of total compensation the Municipality or third
party actually paid to the individual in their first year of service to such party, whichever is greater. The
Municipality further understands that any breach by the Municipality of this provision may result in a
threat to our independence which may prevent us from accepting or continuing any engagement to
provide assurance services to the Municipality. "MNP Person” means any and all partners, employees and
contractors providing services to MNP, whether for a defined or indefinite period or on a part-time or
full-time basis, and with whom the Municipality had contact during the term of this engagement.
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Audit Service Plan Overview

We are pleased to present our Audit Service Plan for Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal and
its subsidiaries (the “Municipality”) which outlines the strategy we will follow to provide the Municipality’s Council
with our Independent Auditor’s Report on the December 31, 2023 financial statements. We are providing this Audit
Service Plan to Council on a confidential basis. It is intended solely for the use of Council and is not intended for
any other purpose. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other party who may rely on this report.

Additional materials provided along with this plan include both our Engagement Letter and draft Independence
Communication. Our Engagement Letter is the formal written agreement of the terms of our audit engagement as
negotiated with management and outlines our responsibilities under Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our draft Independence Communication formally confirms in writing MNP's independence.

We confirm to Council that we are independent of the Municipality. Our letter to Council discussing our
independence is included at the end of this report.

Topics for Discussion

We are committed to providing superior client service by maintaining effective two-way communication. Topics for
discussion include, but are not limited to:

e Changes to your business operations and e Fraud, including how fraud could occur, the risk
developments in the financial reporting and of fraud and misstatement, and any actual,
regulatory environment suspected or alleged fraud

e Business plans and strategies e The management oversight process

e Any other issues and/or concerns e Your specific needs and expectations

The MNP Audit Approach

Audit Materiality

The scope of our audit work is tailored to reflect the relative size of operations of the Municipality and our
assessment of the potential for material misstatements in the Municipality’s financial statements as a whole (and, if
applicable, for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures). In determining the scope, we
emphasize relative audit risk and materiality, and consider a number of factors, including:

e The size, complexity, and growth of the Municipality;

e Changes within the organization, management or accounting systems; and
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e Concerns expressed by management.

We propose to use $560,000 as overall materiality for audit planning purposes.

Auditor’s Approach to Internal Control

For the December 31, 2023 audit, we are planning to place low reliance on the Municipality’s accounting system.
This level of reliance is consistent with the prior year end, and will involve mainly substantive tests of details.

Key Changes and Developments

Based on our knowledge of the Municipality and our discussions with management, we have noted the recent
developments set out below. Our audit strategy has been developed giving consideration to these factors.

ISSUES AND DEVELOPMENTS SUMMARY

NEW REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS e 2018 — 2019 Annual Improvements to Public
Sector Accounting Standards (Amendment)

e PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation (New)
e PS 3041 Portfolio Investments (New)

o PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (New)

e PS 3400 Revenue (New)

e PS 3450 Financial Instruments (New and
Amendment)

e PS 3450 Financial Instruments (Amendment)

e 2019 - 2020 Annual Improvements to Public
Sector Accounting Standards (Amendment)

NEW ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENTS e CAS 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of
Material Misstatement (Amendment)

o CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and
Related Disclosures (New)

Detailed information on Key Changes and Developments are included as Appendix A.
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Risk Assessment

Our audit process focuses on significant risks identified during the pre-planning and planning and risk assessment
stage, ensuring that audit procedures are tailored to your specific circumstances and appropriately address those
risks.

Based on the preliminary risk assessment procedures performed, we have identified the following significant and
high risks which will be addressed during our audit. We have also outlined the proposed audit response to address
those risks. We will update our risk assessment as the audit progresses for additional risks identified and will inform
management of any additional significant risks identified.

SIGNIFICANT RISK AREA PROPOSED AUDIT RESPONSE

Management override of internal controls To respond to the overall risk of material
misstatement due to fraud regarding management's
override of controls, we perform the following
procedures:

1. Test the appropriateness of journal entries
recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements

2. Review accounting estimates for biases and
evaluate whether the circumstances producing the
bias, if any, represent a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud, if applicable

3. Evaluate the rationale behind significant
transactions that are not in the normal course of
business and whether they have been recorded to
engage in fraudulent financial reporting or to
conceal misappropriation of assets

Management override of controls

There is a presumed risk of management override of MNP will test adjusting journal entries posted by
controls in all entities management throughout the year based on criteria
set by the audit engagement team.

Expenses and payables

Expenses could be recorded in the wrong period Test cut-off to gain a high degree of comfort over
expenses being recorded in the proper period.

Revenues and receivables
Test cut-off to gain a high degree of comfort over
Revenues could be recorded in the wrong period revenues being recorded in the proper period as well
as testing adjusting journal entries posted by
management with any unusual account combinations
affecting revenue.

Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 3
Page 65 of 175



HIGHER RISK AREA PROPOSED AUDIT RESPONSE

Grants
Grants subject to certain criteria might be recorded Test grants at a low threshold and ensure they
in revenue when such criteria is not yet met qualify for recognition as revenue in the year.

Audit Team

In order to ensure effective communication between Council and MNP, we outline below the key members of our
audit team that will be responsible for the audit of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal and the
role they will play:

RETURNING TEAM MEMBERS CONTACT INFORMATION

Jamie Pollock, CPA, CA, Partner E: Jamie.Pollock@mnp.ca
Julia Tilley, CPA, Manager E: Julia.Tilley@mnp.ca
Francesca Giovanniello, CPA Candidate, Accountant E: Francesca .Giovanniello@mnp.ca

NEW TEAM MEMBERS CONTACT INFORMATION

Inderjeet Kaur, CPA Student, Accountant E: Inderjeet. Kaur@mnp.ca

Our partners and senior management are committed to providing you with the highest level of attention and
oversight throughout the terms of this engagement, reflecting MNP's staffing model and client service
philosophy. Through consistent attention from leaders, our engagement team will maintain responsibility and
authority over all matters of the engagement and will drive service delivery and issue resolution. In addition,

the engagement team will be actively involved and have hands-on involvement with service delivery, ensuring
engagement objectives will be met.

In order to serve you better and meet our professional responsibilities, we may find it necessary to expand our
audit team to include other MNP professionals whose consultation will assist us to evaluate and resolve complex,
difficult and/or contentious matters identified during the course of our audit.

Any changes to the audit team will be discussed with you to ensure a seamless process and that all concerned
parties’ needs are met.
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Timing of the Audit

Interim fieldwork audit procedures November 27, 2023 to November 28, 2023
Year-end fieldwork audit procedures February 26, 2024 to March 1, 2024
Draft year-end financial statements to be discussed March 22, 2024

with management

Presentation of December 31, 2023 audited financial April 8, 2024
statements to Council

Presentation of Management Letter to Council April 8, 2024

Issuance of Independent Auditor's Report April 8, 2024

Fees and Assumptions

DESCRIPTION 2023 ESTIMATE
Base audit fee $ 33,000
Additional auditing procedures required for new accounting standard (PS 3280)- $ 3,500 -$ 5,000

Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs)

Total $ 36500 -$ 38,000

If any significant issues arise during the course of our audit work which indicate a possibility of increased
procedures or a change in the audit timetable, these will be discussed with management by the engagement
partner, so a mutually agreeable solution can be reached.

Invoices will be rendered as work progresses in accordance with the following schedule:

Progress billing #1 Start of interim audit procedures (late November) $ 12,000
Progress billing #2 Start of year-end audit procedures (late February) $ 12,000
Progress billing #3 - Discussion of draft financial statements with management $ 8,000
(March)

Final billing — upon release of auditor’'s report (April or May) $ 4,500 - $ 6,000
Total $ 36,500 -$ 38,000
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We look forward to discussing our Audit Service Plan with you, as well as any other matters of interest to you.

Sincerely,

MNP cep

Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

encls.
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments

We would like to bring to your attention the following accounting and auditing developments, which may have
some impact on your financial reporting.

Issues and Developments Summary

New Reporting Developments

2018 — 2019 Annual Improvements to Public Sector Accounting Standards (Amendment)
In September 2019, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) issued annual improvements to correct errors in
wording or clarify the PSA Handbook and other guidance. The amendments include:

e Removal of due process procedures from the PSA Handbook and other guidance as PSAB’s Due Process
Manual contains the due process the Board must follow.

e Various amendments to correct inconsistencies and update terminology in affected Standards related to
the introduction of the government component category in 2014.

e Various amendments to PS 3060 Government Partnerships, mainly to update terminology.

e Other minor amendments to address further inconsistencies or areas requiring clarification, as well as
consequential amendments to various other standards.

The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2020 and should be applied
retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.

PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation (New)

In June 2011, as a result of the issuance of PS 3450 Financial Instruments, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB)
issued new PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation, which revises and replaces PS 1200 Financial Statement
Presentation. The main features of the new standard are:

e Remeasurement gains and losses are reported in a new statement: the statement of remeasurement gains
and losses.

e Other comprehensive income arising when a government includes the results of government business
enterprises and government business partnerships in its financial statements, is reported in the statement
of remeasurement gains and losses.

e Accumulated surplus or deficit is presented as the total of the accumulated operating surplus or deficit and
the accumulated remeasurement gains and losses.

The Section is effective in the same period PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation and PS 3450 are adopted. PS 2601
and PS 3450 are to be adopted together and were to be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
In March 2018, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) approved an extension of the effective date to fiscal
years beginning on or after April 1, 2021. On June 25, 2020, the PSAB made the decision to defer the effective date
by one year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The new Section is now effective for annual financial
statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. Early application continues to be permitted.

PS 3041 Portfolio Investments (New)
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments (continued from previous page)

In March 2012, as a result of the issuance of PS 3450 Financial Instruments, the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) issued new PS 3041 Portfolio Investments, which revises and replaces PS 3030 Temporary Investments and PS
3040 Portfolio Investments. The main features of the new standard are:

e PS 3041 does not make a distinction between temporary and portfolio investments, and is cross referenced
and conformed to the requirements of PS 3450.

e Investments previously within the scope of PS 3030, which are not cash equivalents, are now accounted for
within the scope of PS 3041.

This Section is effective in the same period PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation, PS 2601 Foreign Currency
Translation and PS 3450 are adopted. PS 1201, PS 2601 and PS 3450 are to be adopted together and were to be
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019. In March 2018, the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) approved an extension of the effective date to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021. On June 25,
2020, the PSAB made the decision to defer the effective date by one year due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. The new Section is now effective for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2022. Early application continues to be permitted.

PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (New)

In August 2018, new PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook (PSA HB). The new PS 3280 establishes standards on how to account for and report a
liability for asset retirement obligations (ARO). As asset retirement obligations associated with landfills are included
in the scope of new PS 3280, PS 3270 Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability will be withdrawn.

The main features of this standard are as follows:

e An ARO represents a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset.

e Asset retirement costs increase the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset and are expensed
in a rational and systematic matter.

e When an asset is no longer in productive use, the associated asset retirement costs are expensed.

e Measurement of the ARO liability should result in the best estimate of the amount required to retire a
tangible capital asset at the financial statement date.

e Subsequent measurement of the ARO liability results in either a change in the carrying amount of the
related tangible capital asset or an expense. The accounting treatment depends on the nature of the
remeasurement and whether the asset remains in productive use.

e The best method to estimate the liability is often a present value technique.

This standard was to be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021. On June 25, 2020, the PSAB
made the decision to defer the effective date by one year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The new
Section is now effective for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022.
Early application continues to be permitted.

PS 3400 Revenue (New)

In November 2018, new PS 3400 Revenue was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook
(PSA HB). The new PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue by distinguishing
between revenue arising from transactions that include performance obligations and transactions that do not have

Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 8
Page 70 of 175



Appendix A — Key Changes and
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performance obligations. The main features of this Section are as follows:

e Performance obligations are enforceable promises to provide specific goods or services to a specific payor.

e Performance obligations can be satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

e The new standard outlines five indicators to determine if the revenue would be recognized over a period of
time.

e Revenue from a transaction with a performance obligation(s) is recognized when, or as, the entity has
satisfied the performance obligation(s).

e Revenue from transactions with no performance obligation is recognized when a public sector entity has
the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources and a past event that gives rise to a claim
of economic resources has occurred.

Further editorial changes have also been made to other standards as a result of the issuance of PS 3400.

This Section was to be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. On June 25, 2020, the PSAB
made the decision to defer the effective date by one year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The new
Section is now effective for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
Early application continues to be permitted.

PS 3450 Financial Instruments (New and Amendment)

In June 2011, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) issued new PS 3450 Financial Instruments. The new
standard establishes requirements for recognition, measurement, derecognition, presentation and disclosure of
financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivatives. The main features of the new standard are:

e Financial instruments are classified into two measurement categories: fair value, or cost or amortized cost.

e Almost all derivatives, including embedded derivatives not closely related to the host contract, are
measured at fair value.

e Portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market are measured at fair value.

o Other financial assets and financial liabilities are generally measured at cost or amortized cost.

e An entity may elect to measure any group of financial assets or financial liabilities (or both) at fair
value when the entity has a risk management or investment strategy to manage those items on a fair
value basis.

e Remeasurement gains and losses on financial instruments measured at fair value are reported in the
statement of remeasurement gains and losses until the financial instrument is derecognized.

e Budget to actual comparisons are not required within the statement of remeasurement gains and losses;

e Financial liabilities are derecognized when, and only when, they are extinguished.

e Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and reported on a net basis if a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts exists, and the entity intends to settle on a net basis or
realize/settle the amounts simultaneously.

In May 2012, the transitional provisions for this Section were amended, effective at the time the standard is initially
applied, to clarify that the measurement provisions are applied prospectively. Adjustments to previous carrying
amounts are recognized in opening accumulated remeasurement gains or losses. Additionally, a new transitional
provision has been added that applies to government organizations transitioning from the standards in Part V of
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the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting with items classified as available for sale. Accumulated other
comprehensive income (OCl) from items classified as available for sale is recognized in accumulated
remeasurement gains or losses on transition.

PS 3450 was to be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019. In March 2018, the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) approved an extension of the effective date to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2021. On June 25, 2020, the PSAB made the decision to defer the effective date by one year due to the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic. The new Section and amendments are now effective for annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. Early application continues to be permitted. In the period
that a public sector entity applies PS 3450, it also applies PS 1201 and PS 2601.

PS 3450 Financial Instruments (Amendment)
In April 2020, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) issued amendments to PS 3450 Financial Instruments. The
main features of the amendments include:

Bond Repurchase Transactions
e Bond repurchase transactions are only to be treated as extinguishments when they are either:
e Legally discharged;
e An exchange of debt instruments with substantially different terms; or
e A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or part of it.

Section Application
e C(Clarification that PS 3450 does not apply unless a contractual right or a contractual obligation underlies a
receivable or payable. By definition, there must be a contract for there to be a financial instrument.
e C(Clarification for how to account for a transfer of collateral pursuant to a credit risk management
mechanism in a derivative contract.
e Addition of application guidance explaining that derecognition of a financial asset does not occur if the
transferor of a financial asset retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership.

Transitional Provisions

e C(Clarification that a controlling government should use carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities
in the records of its government organizations when consolidating a government organization.

e For financial assets or financial liabilities in the cost or amortized cost category which have an associated
unamortized discount, premium or transaction costs, the unamortized discount, premium or transaction
costs should be included in the item’s opening carrying value.

e For derivatives which may not have been recognized or may not have been measured at fair value prior to
the adoption of PS 3450, any difference between the previous carrying value and fair value should be
recognized in the opening balance of accumulated remeasurement gains and losses.

The amendments were to be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021. On June 25, 2020, the
PSAB made the decision to defer the effective date by one year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
new Section and amendments are now effective for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2022. Early application continues to be permitted.
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2019 - 2020 Annual Improvements to Public Sector Accounting Standards (Amendment)
In November 2020, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) issued annual improvements to correct errors in
wording or clarify the PSA Handbook and other guidance. The amendments include:

e C(Clarification that early adoption of a new or amended standard also requires early adoption of all
consequential amendments related to that standard and that consequential amendments are not available
for early adoption if the related amended standard has not been early adopted.

e Updates to the disclosure requirements in various standards to reflect the requirement of PS 3380
Contractual Rights relating to disclosure of contractual rights.

e Replacement of the term “contingencies” with “contingent assets and contingent liabilities” in various
standards.

The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021 and should be applied
retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.

New Assurance Developments

CAS 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement (Amendment)

In May 2020, the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB) issued the revised CAS 315 1,to
align with the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board's (IAASB) changes to International Standards
on Auditing (ISA) 315 (revised), with the same title.

The revised CAS 315 incorporates changes to establish more robust requirements and detailed guidance to assist
auditors in performing appropriate risk assessment procedures corresponding with the size and nature of the
entity. It also includes changes to enhance the application of professional skepticism in audits. The revised CAS 315
accomplishes the following:

e Distinguishes the nature and extent of work needed for indirect and direct controls in the system of internal
control;

o Clarifies which controls need to be identified for evaluating the design of a control, and determining
whether the control has been implemented;

e Highlights scalability of the standard by keeping the principles-based requirements focused on what needs
to be done, and using separate headings in the application material to illustrate scaling based on the
complexity of the situation;

e C(Clarifies the definition of "significant risk" and introduces the concept of spectrum of inherent risk to assist
the auditor in making a judgment, based on the likelihood and magnitude of a possible misstatement, on a
range from higher to lower, when assessing risks of material misstatement;

e Introduces the concept of inherent risk factors, including complexity, subjectivity, change, uncertainty or
susceptibility to misstatement due to management bias or other fraud risk factors insofar as they affect
inherent risk;

e Introduces the concepts of "significant classes of transactions, account balances and disclosures" and
"relevant assertions" to assist with the identification and assessment of the risk of material misstatement;

e Separates the assessment of inherent and control risk;

Enhances the auditor's considerations regarding the entity's use of information technology and how it
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affects the audit, and includes considerations for using automated tools and techniques in the application
material;

e Introduces a requirement to "stand back" to evaluate the completeness of the significant classes of
transactions, account balances and disclosures at the end of the risk assessment process;

e Uses more explicit language and enhances requirements and application material to reinforce the
importance of exercising professional skepticism when performing risk assessment procedures; and

e Clarifiesthe threshold for identifying possible risks of material misstatement in CAS 200 Overall Objectives of
the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards.

As a result of issuing the revised CAS 315, requirements for several other standards have been amended to better
articulate the auditor’s responsibilities regarding identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement:

e CAS 240 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements
e CAS 330 The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks

o CAS 402 Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organization

e CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures

The revised CAS 315 and other conforming amendments to other standards are effective for audits of financial
statements for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2021. Earlier application is permitted.

CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures (New)

In March 2019, the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB) revised and replaced CAS 540 Auditing
Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures. The revised CAS 540
incorporates changes to establish more robust requirements and appropriately detailed guidance to foster audit
quality by driving auditors to perform appropriate procedures in relation to accounting estimates and related
disclosures.

This revised CAS:

e Introduces the concept of inherent risk factors, including estimation uncertainty, complexity, subjectivity
and others;

e Introduces a separate assessment of inherent risk and control risk for accounting estimates;

e Explicitly recognizes the spectrum of inherent risk;

e Enhances requirements for risk assessment procedures related to obtaining an understanding of the entity
and its environment, including internal control;

e Introduces objectives-based work effort requirements to design and perform further audit procedures to
respond to assessed risks of material misstatement;

e Enhances the “stand-back” requirements by adding an evaluation of corroborative and contradictory audit
evidence obtained regarding the accounting estimates;

e Enhances requirements to obtain audit evidence about whether the disclosures are reasonable; and

e Includes a requirement to consider matters regarding accounting estimates when communicating with
those charged with governance.

As a result of issuing revised CAS 540, the following standards have been amended to clarify the auditor’s
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responsibilities regarding auditing accounting estimates and related disclosures:

o CAS 500 Audit Evidence;
e CAS 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements; and
o CAS 701 Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor's Report.

Further editorial changes have also been made to other standards as a consequence of revising CAS 540.

The revised CAS 540 is effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after December 15,
2019. Earlier application is permitted.
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MNP

Members of Council

Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal
P.O. Box 129

18 Centre Street

Spencerville, ON KOE 1X0

Dear Sirs/Mesdames:

We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of Corporation of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal
(the "Municipality") as at December 31, 2023 and for the year then ended.

CAS 260 Communication With Those Charged With Governance requires that we communicate with you matters that
are significant to our engagement. One such matter is relationships between the Municipality and its related entities or
persons in financial reporting oversight roles at the Municipality and MNP.LLP and any affiliates (“"MNP”) that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. In determining which relationships
to report, the Standard requires us to consider relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate
professional accounting body and applicable legislation, covering 'such matters as:

(@) Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant
influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client or a related entity;

(c) Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners, either
directly or indirectly, with a client or a related entity;

(d) Economic dependence on a client; and

(e) Provision of non-assurance services in‘addition to the audit engagement.

We are not aware of any relationship between the Municipality and MNP that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, which have occurred from January 1, 2023 to April 8, 2024.

We hereby confirm that MNP is independent with respect to the Municipality within the meaning of the Code of
Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario as of April 8, 2024.

This report is intended solely for the use of Members of Council, management and others within the Municipality and
should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter as well as other matters that may be of
interest to you. We will be prepared to answer any questions you may have regarding our independence as well as
other matters.

Sincerely,

encls.

MNP LLP
709 Cotton Mill Street, Cornwall ON, KéH 7K7 T:613.932.3610 F:613.938.3215
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MADE " CANADA

At MNP we're proud to be the national accounting,
consulting and tax firm that is 100% Made in Canada.

Our history defines who we are and our approach to
business. Being a Canadian firm has helped shape our values,
our collaborative approach, and the way we work with our
clients, engaging them every step of the way.

We have a unique perspective. Our decisions are made here
— decisions that drive Canadian business and help us all
achieve success — and we know the impact that our choices
have on the cities and towns we call home.

Throughout our six decades of work, we've seen our
communities are more than just a place we do business in.
They're a place where our families live, play, and thrive, and
we work to make them the best places they can be.

Being 100% Canadian is something we wear proudly. This
country provides us with great opportunities, and we're here
to help our clients seize the opportunities so we can create a
brighter future for the generations to come.

W Wherever business takes you . ill | : | u
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QPRAXITY

Wherever business takes you
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TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL

November 27, 2023
Resolution Number: 2023-
Moved By: ‘ 7R T
Seconded By: 4 R I

THAT Municipal Council receives and approves the 2023 Audit Service Plan as
presented by MNP LLP Chartered Accountants, as recommended by the Port
Management Committee.

0 Carried [ Defeated O Unanimous

Mayor:

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY:

NAME YEA NAY

Councillor J. Martelle

Councillor W. Smail

Councillor C. Ward

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough

Mayor T. Deschamps

TOTAL
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Port of Johnstown

2023 Audit Service Plan
Report to Port Management Committee
December 31, 2023

Marc Normand, CPA, CA
T: (613) 691-4254
E: marc.normand@mnp.ca

Wherever business takes you

MNP.ca



Audit Service Plan Overview

We are pleased to present our Audit Service Plan for Port of Johnstown (the “Company”) which outlines the
strategy we will follow to provide the Company’'s Port Management Committee with our Independent Auditor’s
Report on the December 31, 2023 financial statements. We are providing this Audit Service Plan to the Port
Management Committee on a confidential basis. It is intended solely for the use of the Port Management
Committee and is not intended for any other purpose. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other
party who may rely on this report.

Additional materials provided along with this plan include both our Engagement Letter and draft Independence
Communication. Our Engagement Letter is the formal written agreement of the terms of our audit engagement as
negotiated with management and outlines our responsibilities under Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our draft Independence Communication formally confirms in writing MNP's independence.

We confirm to Port Management Committee that we are independent of the Company. Our letter to Port
Management Committee discussing our independence will be included at the conclusion of the audit.

Topics for Discussion

We are committed to providing superior client service by maintaining effective two-way communication. Topics for
discussion include, but are not limited to:

e Changes to your business operations and e Fraud, including how fraud could occur, the risk
developments in the financial reporting and of fraud and misstatement, and any actual,
regulatory environment suspected or alleged fraud

e Business plans and strategies e The management oversight process

e Any other issues and/or concerns e Your specific needs and expectations

The MNP Audit Approach

Audit Materiality

The scope of our audit work is tailored to reflect the relative size of operations of the Company and our
assessment of the potential for material misstatements in the Company’s financial statements as a whole (and, if
applicable, for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures). In determining the scope, we
emphasize relative audit risk and materiality, and consider a number of factors, including:

e The size, complexity, and growth of the Company;
e Changes within the organization, management or accounting systems; and
e Concerns expressed by management.

We propose to use $400,000 as overall materiality for audit planning purposes.
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Auditor’s Approach to Internal Control

For the December 31, 2023 audit, we are planning to place no reliance on the Company’s accounting system. This
level of reliance is consistent with the prior year end, and will involve mainly substantive tests of details.

Key Changes and Developments

Based on our knowledge of the Company and our discussions with management, we have noted the recent
developments set out below. Our audit strategy has been developed giving consideration to these factors.

ISSUES AND DEVELOPMENTS SUMMARY

NEW REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(January 2020 Amendment)

e |AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors (February 2021
Amendment)

e |FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and 1AS
7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

e IFRS 16 Leases (September 2022 Amendments)

e IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (New, including
Amendments subsequently issued in June 2020
and December 2021)

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (Amendments)

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(October 2022 Amendments)

NEW ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENTS o CAS 220 Quality Management for an Audit of
Financial Statements (Amendment)

Detailed information on Key Changes and Developments are included as Appendix A.

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 1

P&gesd2 of 45



Risk Assessment

Our audit process focuses on significant risks identified during the pre-planning and planning and risk assessment
stage, ensuring that audit procedures are tailored to your specific circumstances and appropriately address those
risks.

Based on the preliminary risk assessment procedures performed, we have identified the following significant and
high risks which will be addressed during our audit. We have also outlined the proposed audit response to address
those risks. We will update our risk assessment as the audit progresses for additional risks identified and will inform
management of any additional significant risks identified.

SIGNIFICANT RISK AREA PROPOSED AUDIT RESPONSE

Management override of internal controls To respond to the overall risk of material
misstatement due to fraud regarding management's
override of controls, we perform the following
procedures:

1. Test the appropriateness of journal entries
recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements

2. Review accounting estimates for biases and
evaluate whether the circumstances producing the
bias, if any, represent a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud, if applicable

3. Evaluate the rationale behind significant
transactions that are not in the normal course of
business and whether they have been entered into to
engage in fraudulent financial reporting or to
conceal misappropriation of assets

Revenue MNP will test cut-off to gain a high degree of
comfort over revenues being recorded in the proper

These is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue period as well as testing journal entries posted by

recognition on all audits. We have assessed this risk management with any unusual account combinations

as relating to the cut-off assertion, whereby revenues affecting revenue.
could be recorded in the incorrect period.

Management override of controls MNP will test journal entries posted by management
throughout the year based on criteria set by the
There is a presumed risk of management override of audit engagement team.

controls in all entities

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 2
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Audit Team

Team member continuity is important in developing a solid relationship with the Company, as well as to
understanding your business, risks and processes. We also know team member turnover results in lost knowledge.
While some team member transition likely is inevitable, we work at reducing this through our promoting practices,
learning and training, working closely with team members on career growth and development, and valuing our
professionals.

In order to ensure effective communication between the Port Management Committee and MNP, we outline
below the key members of our audit team that will be responsible for the audit of Port of Johnstown and the role
they will play:

RETURNING TEAM MEMBERS CONTACT INFORMATION

lan Murphy, CPA, CA, Partner E: lan.Murphy@mnp.ca

Marc Normand, CPA,CA, Partner E: Marc.Normand@mnp.ca

NEW TEAM MEMBERS CONTACT INFORMATION

James McRae, CPA, Manager E: James.mcrae@mnp.ca

Our partners and senior management are committed to providing you with the highest level of attention and
oversight throughout the terms of this engagement, reflecting MNP's staffing model and client service
philosophy. Through consistent attention from leaders, our engagement team will maintain responsibility and

authority over all matters of the engagement and will drive service delivery and issue resolution. In addition,

the engagement team will be actively involved and have hands-on involvement with service delivery, ensuring
engagement objectives will be met.

In order to serve you better and meet our professional responsibilities, we may find it necessary to expand our
audit team to include other MNP professionals whose consultation will assist us to evaluate and resolve complex,
difficult and/or contentious matters identified during the course of our audit.

Any changes to the audit team will be discussed with you to ensure a seamless process and that all concerned
parties’ needs are met.

Timing of the Audit

KEY DELIVERABLE EXPECTED DATE

Planning procedures December 4, 2023 to December 8, 2023
Year-end fieldwork procedures January 29, 2024 to February 2, 2024
Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 3

P&gesg# of 45



KEY DELIVERABLE EXPECTED DATE

Draft year-end financial statements to be discussed February 28, 2024
with management

Presentation of December 31, 2023 Audit Findings March 31, 2024
Report to Port Management Committee

Presentation of Management Letter to the Port March 31, 2024
Management Committee

Issuance of Independent Auditor’s Report March 31, 2024

Fees and Assumptions

DESCRIPTION 2023 ESTIMATE

Base audit fee $ 30,000

If any significant issues arise during the course of our audit work which indicate a possibility of increased
procedures or a change in the audit timetable, these will be discussed with management by the engagement
partner, so a mutually agreeable solution can be reached.

Invoices will be rendered as work progresses in accordance with the following schedule:

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Progress billing #1 - at start of planning audit procedures $ 15,000
Final billing — at start of year-end audit procedures $ 10,000
Final billing — upon release of auditor's report $ 5,000
Total $ 30,000

We look forward to discussing our Audit Service Plan with you, as well as any other matters of interest to you.

Sincerely,

MNP cep

Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

encls.

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 4
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments

We would like to bring to your attention the following accounting and auditing developments, which may have
some impact on your financial reporting.

Issues and Developments Summary

New Reporting Developments

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (January 2020 Amendment)

In January 2020, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 1 which were
incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting by the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) in
April 2020. The amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as either current or non-current by:

e Specifying that the conditions which exist at the end of the reporting period determine if a right to defer
settlement of a liability exists;

e Clarifying that settlement of a liability refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services;

e Clarifying that classification is unaffected by management’s expectation about events after the balance
sheet date; and

e Clarifying the classification requirements for debt an entity may settle by converting it into equity.

The amendments clarify existing requirements, rather than make changes to the requirements, and so are not
expected to have a significant impact on an entity’'s financial statements. However, the clarifications may result in
reclassification of some liabilities from current to non-current or vice-versa, which could impact an entity’s loan
covenants. Because of this impact, the IASB has provided a longer effective date to allow entities to prepare for
these amendments.

In July 2020, the IASB issued an amendment to defer the effective date of the amendments by one year from its
originally planned effective date to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Early application is permitted. The AcSB endorsed the IASB’'s amendment to defer the
effective date in October 2020.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (February 2021 Amendment)

In February 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors which were incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada
Handbook — Accounting by the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) in June 2021.

The amendments introduce a new definition of ‘accounting estimates’ to replace the definition of ‘change in
accounting estimates’ and also include clarifications intended to help entities distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is
permitted.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 5
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments (continued from previous page)

In May 2023, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued disclosure-only amendments to IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures and I1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. The amendments require entities to disclose
sufficient information necessary for users of financial statements to understand the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities and cash flows, as well as on its liquidity risk and risk management.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. Earlier application
permitted.

IFRS 16 Leases (September 2022 Amendments)

In September 2022, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IFRS 16 Leases to
add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments were incorporated
into Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook in December 2022.

The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way
that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The IASB has not
prescribed a particular method for measuring the lease liability. A seller-lessee must apply the amendments
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. Earlier
application is permitted.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (New, including Amendments subsequently issued in June 2020 and December 2021)
In May 2017, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued a new International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) on insurance contracts, IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which was incorporated into Part | of the CPA
Canada Handbook — Accounting in March 2018. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which was issued as
an interim standard in 2004 and allowed entities to account for insurance contracts using a wide variety of
accounting practices. IFRS 17 introduces a single principle-based standard to account for all types of insurance
contracts to enhance the comparability of financial reporting between entities. The new standard provides guidance
on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. The main features of
IFRS 17 include:

e Recognition and measurement of groups of insurance contracts as a combination of the current
measurement of the future cash flows and the expected profit over the period that services are provided
under the contracts;

e Recognition of profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period the entity provides insurance
coverage and as the entity is released from risk, with immediate recognition of a loss if a group of
contracts is or becomes loss-making;

e Separate presentation of insurance revenue, insurance service expenses and insurance finance income or
expenses;

e An accounting policy choice to either recognize all insurance finance income or expenses for the reporting
period in profit or loss, or a portion of insurance finance income or expenses in comprehensive income;
and

e An optional simplified measurement approach, the “premium allocation approach”, for simpler insurance
contracts.

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 6
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
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In March 2020, the IASB decided to defer the effective date of the standard to annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted for entities that also apply IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

In June 2020, the IASB issued final amendments to IFRS 17, which were incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada
Handbook — Accounting in November 2020.

The amendments are summarized below:

e Credit cards contracts and loan contracts that meet specified criteria are excluded from the scope of IFRS
17 and instead accounted for by applying IFRS 9.

e A portion of acquisition costs must be allocated to any related expected contract renewals. Such costs are
recognized as an asset until the contract renewals are recognized. The recoverability of the asset must be
assessed at each reporting date.

e Companies that prepare interim financial statements have the option to change the estimates made in
previous interim financial statements when applying IFRS 17 subsequently, if it considers doing so less
costly than keeping the estimates unchanged.

e The expected profit for insurance contract services attributable to insurance coverage and any service
related to investment activities (investment-return service) shall be recognized in profit or loss over time.

e An entity is permitted to use the risk mitigation option, when an entity uses reinsurance contracts held or
non-derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss to mitigate financial risks
of insurance contracts with direct participation features.

e An entity that recognizes losses on loss-making insurance contracts on initial recognition shall also
recognize a gain at the same time on reinsurance contracts held. The gain is recognized to the extent that
those reinsurance contracts held cover the claims of the insurance contracts on a proportionate basis and
are entered into before or at the same time the loss-making insurance contracts are issued.

e The presentation of insurance contract assets and insurance contract liabilities on the balance sheet shall
be on a portfolio basis rather than groups of insurance contracts.

e Three additional transition reliefs for entities applying the standard for the first time would be provided.
These transition reliefs relate to liabilities for claim settlement acquired in a business combination, risk
mitigation relationships and the fair value transition option.

The IASB also issued a consequential amendment to IFRS 4 to defer the fixed expiry date for the temporary
exemption from applying IFRS 9, so that entities would be required to apply IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2023.

In December 2021, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 17 which was incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada
Handbook — Accounting in March 2022.

The narrow-scope amendment provides an optional IFRS 17 transition provision for entities that first apply IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 at the same time to alleviate an expected issue that could otherwise arise due to differences in the
transition reliefs provided by IFRS 17 and 9. The amendment relates to financial assets for which comparative
information presented on initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 has not been restated for IFRS 9. Applying the
amendment, an entity would be permitted to present comparative information about such a financial asset as if the

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan 7
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments (continued from previous page)

classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 had been applied to that financial asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 coinciding with the effective
date of IFRS 17.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(Amendments)

In February 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements which were incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements in June 2021.

The amendments help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful to primary users of
financial statements by:

e Replacing the requirement to disclose “significant” accounting policies under IAS 1 with a requirement to
disclose "material” accounting policies. Under this, an accounting policy would be material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

e Providing guidance in IFRS Practice Statement 2 to explain and demonstrate the application of the four-
step materiality process to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments, which should be applied prospectively, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted. Once the entity applies the amendments to IAS 1, it is also
permitted to apply the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (October 2022 Amendments)

In October 2022, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 1 which were
incorporated into Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting in December 2022. The amendments require
an entity to disclose, in specified circumstances, information in the notes that enables financial statement users to
understand the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within 12 months after the
reporting period. As part of the amendments, a provision was added to clarify that only covenants that an entity
must comply with on or before the reporting date would affect a liability’s classification as current or non-current,
even if compliance with the covenant is only assessed after the entity’s reporting date. Covenants which an entity
must comply with after the reporting date would not affect classification of a liability as current or non-current at
the reporting date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies these amendments early is also required to apply the January 2020
amendments at the same time, and vice versa.

New Assurance Developments

CAS 220 Quality Management for an Audit of Financial Statements (Amendment)
In May 2021, the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB) issued the revised CAS 220 Quality Control for an
Audit of Financial Statements to align with the requirements of ISA 220 Quality Management for an Audit of
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Appendix A — Key Changes and
Developments (continued from previous page)

Financial Statements. The amendments deal with the specific responsibilities of the auditor regarding quality
management at the engagement level for an audit of financial statements, including a particular focus on the roles
and responsibilities of the engagement partner. CAS 220 is meant to be scalable for firms of different sizes and for
engagements where the nature and circumstances differ.

CAS 220 sets out requirements relating to:

e Leadership responsibilities for managing and achieving quality on audits;

e Relevant ethical requirements, including those related to independence;

e Acceptance and continuance of client relationships and audit engagements;
e Engagement resources,

e Engagement performance;

e Monitoring and remediation;

e Taking overall responsibility for managing and achieving quality; and

e Documentation.

As a result of issuing the amendments to CAS 220, amendments have been made to CAS 300 Planning an Audit of
Financial Statements and CAS 610 Using the Work of Internal Auditors. Editorial changes have been made to other
standards.

CAS 220 is effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2022.

Port of Johnstown - December 31, 2023 Audit Service Plan
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At MNP we're proud to be the national accounting,
consulting and tax firm that is 100% Made in Canada.

Our history defines who we are and our approach to
business. Being a Canadian firm has helped shape our values,
our collaborative approach, and the way we work with our
clients, engaging them every step of the way.

We have a unique perspective. Our decisions are made here
— decisions that drive Canadian business and help us all
achieve success — and we know the impact that our choices
have on the cities and towns we call home.

Throughout our six decades of work, we've seen our
communities are more than just a place we do business in.
They're a place where our families live, play, and thrive, and
we work to make them the best places they can be.

Being 100% Canadian is something we wear proudly. This
country provides us with great opportunities, and we're here
to help our clients seize the opportunities so we can create a
brighter future for the generations to come.

W Wherever business takes you . ill | : | u

P&gesPt of 4F5




QPRAXITY

Wherever business takes you

P&gecdi2 of 475




November 17, 2023

Robert Dalley, General Manager
Port of Johnstown

3035 County Road 2
Johnstowry, ON KOE 111

Dear Mr. Dalley,:

This letter will confirm the arrangements discussed with you regarding the services MNP LLP {"we" or "MNP"} will
render to Port of Johnstown {the "Company"} commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023,

Our responsibiiities

We will audit the financial statements of Port of Johnstown for the year ended December 31, 2023,

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Accordingly, we will
plan and perform cur audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements taken as a
whole are free of material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

Our responsibilities, objective, scope, independence and the inherent limitations of an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards are detailed in Appendix A, which forms part of our mutual
understanding of the terms of this engagement.

Management’'s responsibilities

The operations of the Company are under the controt of management, which has responsibility for the accurate
recording of transactions and the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. This indludes the design, implementation and maintenance of the system
of internal control relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Appendix B, which describes in detail management's responsibilities with respect to this engagement, forms part of our

mutual understanding of the terms of this engagement.

Reporting

Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantially in the form illustrated in Appendix C.
Fees and expenses

Our fees and expenses are discussed in detail in Appendix D

Other mafters

We will, as permitted by the Code of Professional Conduct, provide additional services upon request, in areas such as
taxation, leadership and human resource management, communicaticon, marketing, strategic planning, financial

MNP LLP

709 Cotton Mill Street, Cormwall ON, KeH 7K7
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management and technology consulting.

Qur standard terms and conditions, included as Appendix E, form part of our mutual understanding of the terms of
this engagement. In the event that you choose to terminate this engagerment based on the terms outlined in Appendix
E, we reserve the right to notify all financial statement users of the change.

These terms will continue in effect from year to year, unless changed in writing.

We believe the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding, but if you have any questions, please let us know. if
you find the arrangements acceptable, please acknowledge your agreement to the understanding by signing and

returning the engagement letter to us.

Itis a pleasure for us o be of service to you. We look forward to many years of association with you and Port of
Johnstown.

Sincerely,

MNP cer

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

encls.
RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Port of fohnstown.

7 GErNne MAALe] /\/?{/ -/ ?’ Il %

Officer Signature ﬂ Title Date

cc: Port Management Committes
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Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations

The following details our responsibilities as auditors and the objective, scope, independence and inherent limitations of
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

Our responsibilities, objective and scope

Our audit will be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a
whole are free of material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error. If any of the following matters are
identified, they will be communicated to the appropriate level of management:
* Misstatements, resulting from error, other than immaterial misstatements;
» Fraud or any information obtained that indicates that a fraud may exis;
o Material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern;
» Apy evidence obtained that indicates non-compliance or possible non-compliance with laws and regulations
has occurred;
« Significant deficiencies in the design or implementation of controls to prevent and detect fraud or
misstatements; and
e Related party transactions identified that are not in the normal course of operations and that involve significant
judgments made by management concerning measurement or disclosure.

The matters communicated will be those that we identify during the course of our audit. Audits do not usually identify
all matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. The type and significance of the
matter to be communicated will determine the level of management to which the communication is directed.

Furthermore, we will consider the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting for the purpose of
identifying types of potential misstaternent, considering factars that affect the risks of material misstaternent, and
determining the nature, timing and extent of auditing procedures necessary for expressing our opinion on the financial
staternents. This consideration will not be sufficient to enable us to render an apinion on the effectiveness of controls
over financial reporting nor to identify all significant deficiencies in the Company’s system of financial controls.

independence

The Code of Professional Conduct require that we are independent when conducting this engagement. We will
communicate to the Port Management Committee any relationships between the Company (including related entities)
and MNP that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

If matters should arise during this engagement that can reasonably be assumed to have impaired our independence,
we may need to withdraw from this engagement.

Audit limitations

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. This includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including disclosures.

itis important to recognize that an auditor cannot obtain absolute assurance that material misstatements in the
financial statements will be detected because of factors such as the use of judgment, selective testing of data, inherent

Page 3 of 14

P&gecd® of 45




Appendix A: Our Audit Responsibilities, Objective, Scope and Limitations (confinued from
previous page)

limitations of centrols, and the fact that much of the audit evidence available is persuasive rather than conclusive in
nature.

Furthermore, because of the nature of fraud, including attempts at concealment through collusion and forgery, an
audit designed and executed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards may not detect a
material misstaterment due to fraud.

While an effective system of internal control reduces the likelihood that misstaternents will occur and remain
undetected, they do not eliminate that possibility. Therefore, we cannot guarantee that fraud, misstatements and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, if present, will be detected when conducting an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

The audit of the financial statements and the issuance of our audit opinion are solely for the use of the Company and
those to whom our report is specifically addressed. We make no representations of any kind to any third party in
respect of these financial statements and we accept no responsibility for their use by any third party. If cur name is to

be used in connection with the financial statements, you will attach our independent audit report when distributing the
financial statements to third parties,

We ask that our names be used only with our consent and that any information to which we have attached a
communication be issued with that communication unless otherwise agreed to by us.

Page 4 of 14
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Appendix B: Management Responsibilities

During the course of our audit, you will be required to provide and make available complete information that is
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finandal statements, incdluding:
o Financial records and related data, including data relevant to disclosures made in the financial statements;
o Copies of all minutes of meetings of Port Management Committees and council;
o Access to personnel to whom we may direct our inguiiries;
¢ Information relating to any known or possible instances of non-compliance with laws, legislative or regulatory
requirements (including financial reporting requirements);
s Information relating to all related parties and related party transactions; and
¢ Allowing access to those within the Company from whom the auditor determines it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.

Management’s responsibility with respect to fraud and misstatement includes:

e The design and implementation of internal control for its prevention and detection;

+ An assessment of the risk that the financial staterments may be materially misstated;

» Disclosure of situations where fraud or suspected fraud involving management, employees who have
significant roles in internat control, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements, have been identified or allegations have been made; and

¢ Communicating your belief that the effects of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements aggregated
during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we will request a letter of representation from
management at the close of cur audit in order to confirm oral representations given to us and reduce the possibility of
misundersianding concerning matters that are the subject of the representations. These representations are used as
evidence to assist us in deriving reasonable conclusions upon which our audit opinion is based.

if the Company plans any reproduction or publication of our report, or a portion thereof, printer's proofs of the
complete documents should be submitted to us in sufficient time for our review, prior to making such documents
publicly available. It will also be necessary for you to furnish us with a copy of the printed report. Further, it is agreed
that in any electronic distribution, for example on Port of Johnstown's website or on designated public document
databases, management s solely responsible for the accurate and complete reproduction of our report and the
stibject matter on which we reported, and for informing us of any subsequent changes to such documents. However,
we are responsible to read the documents 1o ensure accuracy, and consider the appropriateness of other information
accompanying the audited financial statements, upon initial posting.
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Appendix C: lHlustrative Independent Auditor's Report

To the To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal of Port of
Johnstown:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Port of Johnstown (the "Company"), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the statements of profit and other comprehensive i '
in equity and cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financiat statements present faitly, in all material respects he_ nanc;al position of
the Company as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flo e year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted aug
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respong
section of aur report. We are independent of the Company in ac ance wnth the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and wi e fulfllied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidente we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

g:standards, Our responsibilities
Bilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged wit nance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards, and for.such internal controt as management determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that ar'j_' free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
error, i

In preparing the financial statements, mana
a going concern, disclosing, as appllcabie
accounting unless management ajl
alternative but to do so.

_'e’nt is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
Aatters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
|ntend5 to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

Those charged with gover;}éii : e-rzé'sponsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibili or-the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qur objectives ai
material missta
Reasor) ble as5

to olitain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

t, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
nceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
i ger ccepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
M|sstazemenﬁ canarise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statemnents.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generatly accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Appendix C: lllustrative Independent Auditor's Report (confinued from previous page)

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatermnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. .

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceciures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion onith i
of the Company's internal control.

» Cvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounti
and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to e
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going conice
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's’
disclosures in the financial statemenits or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of otirauditor
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a ncern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finaricial statéments, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the mderlylng transa gns’and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

sttimates

acc unt%ng and, based
t$-or conditions that

f wéconcfude that a
the related

ify our opinion. Our

's report. However, future

We comimunicate with those charged with governance regarding; an
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significa
identify during our audit. -

ther matters, the planned scope and
“deficiencies in internal control that we

Cornwali, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Aceountants
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Appendix D: Fees and Expenses

Our fees are determined on the basis of time spent on the engagement at the tariff rates of varicus members of our
team. Any disbursemeants will be added to the billing.

The estimate of fees for the audit services 1o be provided are $30,000,

Inveices will be rendered as work progresses in accordance with the following schedule:

Progress billing #1 - at start of planning procedures $ 15,000
Progress bifling #2 - at start of year-end procedures $ 70,000
Final billing - upon release of the Independent Auditor's Report $ 5,000

In signing this letter, you acknowledge your approval of the above billing schedule and amounts. Invoices expected to
be issued that do not adhere to this schedule, or are in excess of the amounts noted above, will be discussed with you
for your approval. Fees collected will be applied to overdue invoices first, followed by subsequently issued invoices in
order of issuance. If payment is not received in accordance with the above schedule, we will at our discretion cease all
work until the scheduted payments are received.

Our estimated fees are based on our past experience and our knowledge of the Company. This estimate relies on the
following assumptions:
« No significant deficiencies in the system of internal control which cause procedures to be extended;
¢ No major unadjusted misstatemeni{s) or un-reconciled balances;
e Significantly all adjusting entries are completed prior to the trial balance and journal entries being provided to
the audit teamn; '
+ Al management and required staff are available as needed;
¢ |nformation and working papers required, as outlined in our letter of fiscal year-end requirements, are prov;ded
in the mutually agreed form and timing; and
¢ There are no changes to the agreed upon engagement timetable and reporting requirements.

We will ask that your personnel, to the extent possible, prepare various schedules and analysis, and make various
invoices and other documents available to our team. This assistance will facilitate the progress of our work and
minimize the cost of our service to you.

If any significant issues arise during the course of our audit work which indicate a possibility of increased procedures or
a change in the audit timetable, these will be discussed with management by the practitioner leading your
engagement so a mutually agreeable solution can be reached. In accordance with owr standard terms and conditions,
included as Appendix £, if significant changes 1o the arrangements set forth in this engagement letter are required, any
change in scope of the engagement will need to be agreed in writing, in a "Change Order” agreement.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions

The following standard terms and conditions and engagement letter to which they are attached form one agreement
{the “Agreement”} and set out the terms and conditions upon which MNP LLP ("MNP") will provide services to you
{the "Company”).

1. Timely Performance - MNP will use all reasonable efforts to complete, within any agreed-upon time
frame, the performance of the services described in the engagement letter to which these terms and
cenditions are attached. However, MNP shall not be liable for failures or delays in performance that arise
from causes beyond our control, including the untimely performance by the Company of its obligations
as set out in the engagement letter,

2. Right to Terminate Services - The Company may terminate the engagement upon 30 days written
notice. If this occurs, the Company shall pay for fime and expenses incurred by MNP up to the
termination date, together with reasonable time and expenses incurred to bring the services to a close in
a prompt and orderly manner. Should the Company not fulfil its obligations as set out herein and in the
engagement letter, and in the event that the Company fails to remedy such default within 30 days
following receipt of notice from MNP to that effect, MNP may, upon written notification and without
prejudice to its other rights and resources, terminate provision of our services as described in the
engagement letter. In such case, MNP shall not be responsible for any loss, costs, expenses, or damages
resulting from such termination.

3. Change Order - If, subsequeant to the date of this engagement letter, the Company requires significant
changes to the arrangernents set forth in this engagerment letter, the Company will be required to agree
to the change in scope of the engagement in writing, in a "Change Order” agreement. The "Change
Order" agreement will set forth the revised arrangements and scope of services to be performed and any
related additional fees associated.

4. Fees - Any fee estimates by MNP take into account the agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance
from the Company's personnel. MNP undertakes to advise the Company's management an a tirmely basis
should this preparation and assistance not be provided, or should any other circumstances arise which
cause actual time 1o exceed the estimate.

5. Administrative Expenses - A non-reimbursable administrative expense fee (the “"Administrative Fee”)
equal to 5% of the professional fees charged will be levied for administrative expenses. The
acdministrative fee will be added to the professional fees and will be payabie at the same time. Out-of-
pocket expenses, including travel and accommodation expenses, incurred in connection with and
necessary Ic the provision of our Services will be charged to the client.

6. Billing - Bills will be rendered cn a regular basis as the assignment progresses. Accounts are due and
payabie upon receipt. Interest may be charged on the balance of any accounts remaining unpaid for
more than 30 days, at a rate of 1.5% per month (19.56% per annum).

7. Taxes - All fees and other charges do not include any applicable federal, provincial, or other goods and
services or sales taxes, or any other taxes or duties whether presenily in force or imposed in the future,

The Campany shall assume and pay any such taxes or duties, without deduction from the fees and
charges hereunder.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions {continued from previous page)

10.

Governing Law - The engagernent will be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Ontario, and shall be deemed in all respects to be an Ontario contract. The Company and
MNP submit to the courts of that jurisdiction with respect to ali matters arising under or by virtue of this
Agreement.

Working Papers - MNP owns all working papers and files, other materials, reports and work created,
developed or performed during the course of the engagement, including inteftectual property used in the
preparation thereof. We will provide management with a copy of all practitioner-prepared working
papers necessary for the Company's accounting records. MNP may develop software, including
spreadsheets, documents, databases, and other electronic tools, to assist us with our assignment. As
these tools and working papers were developed specifically for our purposes and without consideration
of any purpose for which the Company might use them, any such tools which may be provided to the
Company, will be made available on an "as is" basis only, at our discretion, and should not be distributed
to or shared with any third party. Except as indicated in the Code of Professional Conduct or by any legal
proceeding, we have no responsibility to share our working papers with you or with any other parties.

Personal Data - Except to the extent necessary for the performance of the services, the Company shali
not provide any personat information to MNP in connection with this engagement. If personal
information is disclosed to MNP, or is accessed, collected, used, or disclosed by MNP, the Company
represents and warrants that it has or will {(as required) collect all necessary consents, provide any
necessary notices, and do all such other things as are required under applicable law in respect of such
personal information. Under Canadian and Provincial legislation, "personat information™ generally refers
to any information about an identifiable individual that allows such individual to be identified. Should
personal information be disclosed to MNP, or be accessed, collecied, used, or disclosed by MNP in
connection with this Agreement, you give us your consent to access, coltect, use, or disclose such
personal information. To the extent MNP receives personal information, it will collect, use or disclose it in
accordance with applicable Canadian federal and provincial privacy legislation, the terms of MNP's
privacy policy, available for review at www.mnp.ga/privacy, and the terms contained herein. In the event
of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the MNP privacy policy, the terms of
this Agreement will prevail.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (confinued from previous page)

1.

Confidentiality - "Confidential information” means any and all information in any form that a party
("Disclosing Party”) provides to the other party {"Receiving Party”) in the course of this Agreement and
that either has been marked as confidential or is of such nature that a reasonable person would treat it as
confidential under like circurnstances.

Confidential Information does not include information that; (i} is or becomes generally known or available
to the public, through no act or omission on the part of the Receiving Party; (i) was known by the
Receiving Party prior to receiving such information from the Disclosing Party and without restriction as to
use or disciosure; (iii) has been agreed hy the Parties in writing as being excluded from Confidential
information; (iv) is rightfully acquired by the Receiving Party from a third party who has the right to
disclose it and who provides it without restriction as to use or disclosure; or {v) is independently
developed by or on behalf of the Receiving Party without access to any Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party. Each Party retains ownership of its Confidential Information.

Each party agrees to (i) protect the other’s Confidential Information in the same manner as it protects the
confidentiality of its own proprietary and confidential materiats but in no event with less than reasonable
care; (i} use the other’s Confidential information only in relation with the Agreement. Neither Party shall,
except with respect to their employees, partners, contractors, legal or financial advisors, and its affiiates
with a need to know for purposes of this Agreement, disclose {o any person any Confidential Information
of the Disclosing Party without the Disclasing Party's prior written consent, except where Confidential
Information may be disclosed by court order, law or other legal requirements. The Company
acknowtedges that our client files may be periodically reviewed by provincial or national practice
inspectors as required by law, including for reporting-issuers by the Canadian Public Accountability
Board, the Public Company Accounting Board or other regulators, and by other Firrn personnel that may
be located extra-provincially to ensure we are adhering to professional and Firm standards.

At the expiry or upon termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shail promptly destroy or deliver
to the Disclosing Party all of the Confidential information furnished to it during the term of this
Agreement, provided, however, that the Receiving Party may retain such Confidential Information in its
confidential files, for compliance with alf applicable laws, regulations, professicnal standards and internal
document retention policies, provided such Confidential Information is provided and treated with the
same protections as is provided under this Agreement,

The Receiving Party shall not, in connection with the foregoing ebligations, be required to identify,
destroy, or return Confidential Information held electronically in archive or back-up systems in
accordance with generat systems archiving or backup policies and procedures.
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Appendix E: Standard Terms and Conditions (continued from previous page)

2.

13.

14.

Data Analytics and Benchmarking - The Company agrees that MNP may use relevant poriions of the
data disciosed to MNP in the course of the Engagement, which may include business, financial, personal
or confidential information (the “Client Data") for the purpose of performing individualized (using your
data only, for your eyes only} and aggregated benchmarking analytics (using many data

sources). Aggregated benchmarking services will be performed to provide valuable insights on financial
and other trends either (a) within your specific business organization cver time, or (b} on an aggregated
basis across an enfire industry or sector and will allow MNP to use such information for any business
purposes and to provide services to its clients. None of the analysis generated from aggregated data
processing will contain any information that would allow a third party to identify you. As such, none of
the analytics reporting based on aggregated data will result in a disclosure of Client Data, nor will MNP
re-identify or remave data following the anonymization and aggregation process.

Nature of the Limited Liability Partnership {LLP) - MNP is a registered limited liability partnership, as
permitted by legislation enacted in our governing jurisdiction of the Province of Alberta. This legislation
praovices that a partner of an LLP is not personally liable for any of the debts, obligations, or liabilities of
the LLP or any of the other partners which may arise as a result of any negligent act or omission of
another partner of the LLP, or by any employee of the partnership, unless such act or omission is
committed by the partner him or herself or by a person under the partner's direct supervision and
control. All partners of an LLP remain personally liable for any acts or omissions arising as a result of their
own negligence, and for the acts or omissions of those directly under their supervision or control, and
shall continue to be subject to unlimited personal lability for all of the other abilities of the partnership.
The legislation does not reduce or limit in any way the liability of the partnership itself, and all of the
partnership's assets and insurance covarage remain at risk,

Release and Limitation of Liability - The Company and MNP agree to the following with respect to
MNP's liability to the Company;

a. In any action, claim, loss or damage arising out of the engagement, the Company agrees that MNP's
Eabiity will be several and not joint and the Cempany may only claim payment from MNP of MNP's
proportionate share of the total liability based on the degree of fault of MNP as finally determined by
a court of competent jurisdiction.

b.  Other than for matters finally determined to have resulted from the gross negligence, fraud or willful
misconduct of MNP, whether the claim be in tort, contract, or otherwise:

i. MNP shall not be liable to the Company and the Company releases MNP for all claims, damages,
costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements) incurred or suffered by the
Company related to, arising out of, or in any way associated with the engagement to the extent
that the aggregate of such armcunts is in excess of the total professional fees paid by the
Company to MNP in connection with this engagement during the 12 month period commencing
from the date of the engagement letter to which these terms and conditions are attached; and,

ii. MNP shall not be liable to the Company for any consequential, indirect, fost profit or similar
damages, or failure to realize expected savings, refating to MNP's services provided under the
engagement letter to which these terms and conditions are attached.
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